
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
District 2 

Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

FORMAL MEETING/STUDY SESSION 
September 24, 2019 

6:00P.M. 
116th Session of the 10th Council 

Call to order 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmenibers 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

FORMAL MEETING 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. September 17, 2019 

Subcommittee Reports 
2. Finance- September 10, 2019 

Discussions 
3. Dangerous Animal Ordinance 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

4. Michigan Indigent Defense Commission (MIDC) Interlocal Agreement between Oakland County and City of 
Pontiac 

Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 
5. Phoenix Center Settlement Agreement 

Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman, City Attorney Anthony Chubb and Vince DeLeonardis, President, 
AUCH Construction 

6. City of Pontiac Retired Employees Association (CPREA)- Retiree Health Care Lawsuit Settlement Action 
Plan 
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman, Samantha Kopacz, Miller Canfield and City Attorney Rich Warren 

Ordinances 
7. Adoption of an Ordinance to amend the Municipal Code of the City of Pontiac by amending Chapter 92, 

General Employees' Retirement System, Section 92-2 to update interest rate and mortality table used to 
determine actuarial equivalence 



8. Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend the Zoning Ordinance of City Of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan by 
Addressing Temporary Construction Fencing Regulations 

Resolutions 
Department of Public Works (DPW) 

9. Resolution to approve DTE easement for parcel address located at 68 Oakland Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan. 

10. Resolution to authorize the Mayor to conduct preliminary due diligence regarding the potential purchase of 
235 Wesson Street and to negotiate terms and conditions of sale at a cost not to exceed $45,000.00 and to 
complete process within 60 days. (This resolution has been updated. The previous version of this resolution 
failed on August 13, 2019) 

11. Resolution to approve the $100,000.00 budget amendment for City-wide park enhancements. 

Communication from the Mayor 
12. Report Regarding Check Register, New Hires and Credit Card. 

STUDY SESSION 

Public Comment 

Department of Public Works 
13. Resolution to approve budget amendments to transfer a total of $767,207 for Major Street Fund Road Projects; 

a total of $1,317,545 for Local Street Fund Road Projects; and a total of $30,000.00 for Mowing Services as 
presented. 

Finance 
14. Resolution to approve budget amendment in the amount of $90,000.00 to restore Finance Director's Salary to 

$140,000 as presented in Mayor's 2019-2020 proposed budget 

15. Request to renew consideration of resolution to approve a Notice of Intent to Issue Capital Improvement 
Bonds, Series 2019 (Limited Tax General Obligation), in an amount not to exceed $19,500,000.00, for the 
purpose of paying all or part of the costs of acquiring, constructing, furnishing and equipping improvements to 
the parking deck, plaza and related improvement to the City's Phoenix Center. 

Economic Development 
16. Resolution to Approve Amendment 1 to the 2016 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium Agreement 

between Oakland County and the City of Pontiac. 

Communication from the Mayor 
17. Report- Jobs' Pipeline/Workforce Development Report - Silverdome Site Development Amazon 

Announcement. 

Adjournment 



·1 

MINUTE 



September 17, 2019 Formal 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

115th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
September 17, 2019 at 6:04 p.m. by Council President Pro-Tern Randy Carter. 

Call to Order 

Invocation - Pastor Matlock 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman. 
Members Absent: Williams. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-475 Excuse Councilperson Kermit Williams for personal reasons. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Carter 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

Council Pres'ident Kermit Williams arrived at 6:05 p.m. 

19-476 Amendments to the agenda to discuss only items #3 (filling of the council vacancy 
for district 2), item # 6 (Medical Marihuana Budget & Status update on RFP for professional 
Expert-Financial Advisor to the City Clerk & RFP for Hearing Officer) public comment and 
approve amended agenda. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 
Waterman. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: Pietila 
Motion Carried. 

19-477 Approve amended meeting minutes of September 10, 2019. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Taylor-Burks 

1 



September 17, 2019 Formal 

No: Pietila 
Motion Carried. 

Recognition of Elected Officials- None 

Agenda Address- None 

19-478 Motion to accept submitted resumes in the Clerk's Office starting tomorrow 
morning (9/18/2019) for one week to fill Council Vacancy Seat for District 2. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila,Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Discussion- Medical Marihuana Budget and Status Update on RFP for Professional Expert
Financial Advisor to the City Clerk and RFP for Hearing Officer 

The futerim City Clerk gave a presentation ori his budget. He stated that the Clerk's Office has no budget 
deficit (see Attachment A City Clerk 2019-2020 Budget Presentation and Attachment B Medical 
Marijuana Application Fee Calculation 9/11/2019 Updated Clerk Revisions). 

Nine (9)individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

Mayor Waterman, futerim City Clerk Garland Doyle, Legislative Counsel Monique Sharp, 
Councilwoman Waterman, Councilwoman Pietila, Councilwoman Taylor-Burks, Councilwoman Miller, 
and Council President Pro-Tern Carter and Council President Williams made closing comments. 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 7:15 p.m. 

2 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



City Clerk 

2019-2020 Budget Presentation 

Pontiac City Council 

September 17, 2019 

Garland S. Doyle, M. P.A., CNP 

Interim City Clerk 

Attachment A 



Three Separate Budgets 

Direct Oversight 
·Dept 191- Elections (Budget is balanced.) 

·Dept 21- City Clerk (Budget is balanced.) 

Partial Oversight 
·Dept 255- Medical Marihuana Applications (The Clerk's portion of the budget 
is balanced. The Mayor's portion is not do to overestimating expenses and 
underestimating revenue.) 



Budgeted Positions 
Dept How is Budget Funded? Budgeted Positions Status 
Clerk (215) General Fund 

City Clerk (Interim) Filled 
Deputy City Clerk Filled 
Customer Service Rep Filled 

Elections {191) General Fund Assistant City Clerk Open 
Filling this position has no effect on the Medical Marihuana Applications Budget because it has its 
own budget. It would be financially irresponsible to move money out of the Elections Budget to 
cover Medical Marihuana. 

Medical Marihuana Application Fee 
Applications (255) 

Financial Advisor to Clerk 
Hearing Officer 
Legal Advisor to Clerk 

Open ( Contract) 
Open ( Contract) 
Open (Contract) 

The Medical Marihuana Applications Budget is funded with the Medical Marihuana Application 
Fee. The purpose of this fee is to "help defray administrative costs associated with the application 
for the medical marihuana facility, which shall be set by a resolution adopted by Council, but shall 
not exceed five thousand ($5,000.00) per application" (Ordinance 2357(8) Section 8(d)). 

It is financially irresponsible and maybe illegal to allocate medical marihuana application fees to 
the general fund and not to designate them to cover the administrative costs associated with the 
application for the medical marihuana facility. 



If the Administration was going to base the 
Medical Marihuana Budget Expenses on 
receiving 200 applications than they should 
have budgeted the Medical Marihuana 
Revenue on receiving 200 application fees 
of $5,000 = $1,000,000.00 {1 million) and 
not the 100,000 that they allocated. 



Clerk fixes Mayor's Medical Marihuana Budget 
How? 
·By not padding the budget by underestimating revenue and overestimating expenses unlike the 
Mayor and her budget team in their proposed budget. 

·Designate the $5,000 application fee to cover the administrative cost associated with reviewing 
applications 

·Reduced the $6,362.00 estimated administrative costs to review and approve an application to 
$5,000.00 so no general fund dollars have to be used to cover administrative costs 

How is the Clerk going to reduce administrative costs? 
1. The applicant will have to pay for building, mechanical, electrical and plumbing 
inspections fees separately. (Lansing's Medical Marihuana Ordinance is similar to 
Pontiac's and applicants in Lansing pay inspection fees separately.) 
Rationale: Not all applications will be approved and if we state t hat a part of our 
non-refundable application fee is used for inspection fees tha n unapproved applicants 
could be entitled to part of their application fee back. 
2. The applicant will have to pay Site Plan and Special Exemption Review fees separately 
3. The applicant will have to pay Fire inspection fees separately 

·Estimated Medical Marihuana Review Expenses do not exceed Estimated Medical Marihuana 
Application Fee Revenue---- NO DEFICIT 

·Utilize contractors as oppose to City employees in the application review process whenever 
possible. THIS WILL ENSURE THAT CITY SERVICES WILL NOT BE EFFECTED. 



Recommendation 

Although applicants should pay 
various building and planning 
inspection fees separately, we need 
to designate them as medical 
marihuana income. This way we will 
know all the medical marihuana 
revenue and expenses for the City. 

---



Status of RFPs 
Hearing Officer issued to the public 
Due Oct 8th 

Financial Advisor still awaiting 
Mayor's signature before Purchasing 
can issue to the public 



Proposed Application Review Process for Grower, Processor, 
Secure Trans orter, and Safet Com liance A licants 

G) The Office of the City Clerk will review all applications to make sure all information and exhibits have 
been submitted . 

The City Clerk will check with the following departments to ensure that the applicant is not in defaul1 
with the City. 

0 I I 
50th District Court Review, to Income Tax Treasury be completed by City Clerk 

0 The Legal Advisor to the City Clerk will conduct the criminal background checks of the applicants. 

0 The City Clerk will refer the applications to the following. 
I 

I I I I I I 

Building Planning Fire 
rinanc1a1 Legal 

Advisor to Sheriff Finance DPW Advisor City Clerk 
• Sec. 9(b)(1) • Sec. 8(c)(18)-(20) • Sec. 8(c)(31) City Clerk • Sec . 

• Sec. 8(c)(27), (30) • Sec. 8(c)(17) • Sec. 8(c)(25) • Sec. 8(c)(21) • Sec. 8(c)(5) 
8( c)( 15)-( 16) • Sec. 9(b)(3) • Sec. 9(b)(2) • Sec. 9(b)(1) • Sec. 8(c)(6)-(13) 

• Sec 8 (c)( 14 - - ·- .. 

G) The City Clerk will award permits to applicants that have satisfactorily met all requirements o1 
Ordinance 2357(b) and have received 9(b)(1) clearance from Building and Fire, 9(b)(2) clearance from 
Planning , and 9(b)(3) clearance from Building . 



Proposed Application Review Process for Provisioning Centers 
~ The Office of the City Clerk will divide all applications into one of four (1 of 4) districts. Applicants will be 
~ scored and ranked by district. 

0 
The City Clerk will check with the following departments to ensure that the applicant is not in defaul1 
with the City. 

I I I 
50th District Court Review, to Income Tax Treasury be completed by City Clerk 

The Scoring Team will consist of the City Clerk, Planning Manager, Professional Expert- Financial 
Advisor to the City Clerk and the Professional Expert-Legal Advisor to the City Clerk. 

G) The City Clerk, Planning Manager and Professional Expert-Financial Advisor will score the relevan 
sections of the application. 

The Scoring Team will meet after all the applications in a district have been scored by the City Clerk, 
Planning Manager and Professional Expert-Financial Advisor to tally the tota l score and rank the 

0 

applications. (The scoring team will meet at least four times.) 

No Scoring or Ranking will be announced until all four of the districts have been scored and ranked . 
The City Clerk will conduct the criminal background checks of the top 5 ranked applicants by district. 

The City Clerk will announce the application rankings by district. 

The City Clerk will refer the applications of the top 5 ranked applicants to the following. 
I 

I I I I I I I 

Building Planning Fire 
Sheriff Finance DPW Legal 

• Sec. 9{b){1) • Sec. 8(c)(18)-(20) • Sec. 
• Sec. • Sec. . sec . Advisor 

• Sec. 9{b){3) 
• Sec. 8(c)(27), (30) 8(c)(31) 

8(c)(17) 8(c)(25) 8(c)(21) • Sec. 9(b )(2) • Sec. 9(b)(1) • Sec. 8(c)(5) 

The City Clerk will award permits to the top 5 applicants from each district after they have received 
9(b)(1) clearance from Building and Fire, 9(b)(2) clearance from Planning, and 9(b)(3) clearance from 
Building. 

~------------------ -- -



Appeal Process 

• An applicant denied a permit may appeal to the City Clerk, who shall appoint a hearing 
officer to hear and evaluate an appeal and make a recommendation to the City Clerk. 
Such appeal would be taken by filing a written statement of appeal with the City Clerk, 
within fourteen (14) days after notice of the denial. 

o The City Clerk would review the report and recommendation of the hearing officer 
and make a decision on the matter. 

• The City Clerk's decision may be further appealed to the Medical Marihuana 
Commission by written appeal no later than thirty (30) days after the City Clerk's 
decision. 

• · IN THE ALTERNATIVE, an applicant may waive, in writing within fourteen (14) days 
after notice of the denial, its opportunity to be heard before a hearing officer, and instead 
submit its appeal directly to the Medical Marihuana Commission no later than (30) days 
after mailing of the denial decision. 

• The Medical Marihuana Commission shall only overturn a decision or finding of the clerk 
if it finds such decision or finding to be arbitrary or capricious and not supported by 
material, substantial, and competent facts on the whole record considered by the clerk 
in arriving at such decision or finding (Ordinance 23578). 



APPEAL 
OPTION 1 PROCESS FOR APPEAL 

Pontiac City Clerk makes decision on application 

Applicant submits written appeal to 
Pontiac City Clerk within 14 days. 

' Pontiac City Clerk appoints hearing officer to hear 
and evaluate appeal. 

' Applicant can present additional clarifying 
information or evidence that the applicant 

believes should be considered in assessing its 

' Hearing officer conducts hearing on appeal and 
makes recommendation to Pontiac City Clerk, 

who makes a decision on the matter. 

' Applicant may submit further written appeal to 
medical marihuana commission within 30 days. 

' Applicant waives, in writing, its right to 
be heard before a hearing officer with in 

14 days. 

' After waiving its right in writing to be heard before 
a hearing officer, Applicant submits written appeal 

to medical marihuana commission through the 
Pontiac City Clerk's Office within 30 days. 

I 
The medical marihuana commission shall only 

overturn a decision or finding of the Pontiac City 
Clerk if it finds such decision or finding to be 
arbitrary or capricious and not supported by 

material, substantial, and competent facts on the 
whole record considered by the Pontiac City 
Clerk in arriving at such decision or finding. 

APPEAL 
OPTION 2 



uestions 



Medical Marijuana Application Fee calculation 

9/11/2019 Updated Clerk Revisions 

Procedure: Hours and tasks were reviewed with personnel from various departments of the City. Hours are an average per 
facility - some facilities and applications with supporting documentation may be much larger than others and require more 
review and inspection. Rates were determined based on salaries of employees or average hourly rate of 3rd party contractors 
most recent contract. 
Figures assume volume of 200 applications: @ 5,000 application fee 

Department 
Planning and Zoning 

Review scaled location area map of the medical marijuana facility and surrounding areas 

Bui ld ing 

Review Floor plans of the medical marijuana facility, as well as a site survey. 
Review Buiding elevations and description of all exterior elevation of the proposed medical Marijuana facility 

Fire 

Review hazardous material plan 

Police 

Review Medical Marijuana Facility Security Plan 

Professional Expert - Financial Advisor to City Clerk 

Sec. 8(c)(6) (Business Plan)/Sec. 8(c)(l3) (Business Goals and Objectives) 
Sec. 8(c)(7) (Ownership Structure) 
Sec. 8(c)(8) (Organization Chart) 
Sec. 8(c)(9) (Marketing, Advertising and Business Promotion Plan) 

TOTAL PLANNING AN D ZONING: 

TOTAL BUILDING INSPECTION: 

TOTAL FIRE: 

TOTAL POLICE: 

Sec. 8(c)(l0) (Planned Tangible Capital lnvestment)/Sec. 8(c)(l2) (Financial Structure and Financing)/Sec 8(c)(24) (Verification of Minimum Capitilization) 

Sec. 8(c)(ll) (Economic Benefits/Job Creation) 
Sec. 8(c)(22) (Inventory and Recordkeeping Plan) 

Finance/Income Tax 

Sec 8(c)(23) No default to the City 

Finance/Treasury 

Sec 8(c)(23) No default to the City 

Department of Publ ic W orks/WRC 

Review of traffic flow in and out of facility 
Review facility sanitation plan 
Review for industrial discharge 

Professional Expert - Lega l Advisor t o City Clerk 

Review training and education plan that the applicant will provide to all employees 
Review criminal background report ofthe applicant's criminal history 
Assist the Clerk with application review 

City Clerk 

TOTAL PROFESSION EXPERT - FINANCIAL ADVISOR: 

TOTAL FIANAN CE/INCOME TAX: 

TOTAL FINAN CE/TREASURY: 

TOTAL DEPARTM ENT OF PUBLIC W ORKS/WRC: 

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL EXPERT - LEGAL ADVISOR: 

Review proof of ownership of the entire premises where in the medical merijuana facility is to operated; or written consent from the property owner for the use c 

Review LARA application documents 
Review proof of an adequate premises liability and casualty insurance policy in the amount not exceeding the requirments addressed in the Medical Marijuana Fae 
Review affidavit that the transfer of Marijuana to and from the medical marijuana facilities shall be in compliance with the MMMA and the Medical Facilites Licen: 

Review application in its entirety and certify all required materials have been presented and approved by various departments of the City 
Process and Review all applications to make sure all questions have been answered completel y and all attachments have been submitted 

Avg Hours 
per t ask 

Attachment B 

200 1 TOTAL REVENUE: $1,000,000.00 

Rate Fee Tota l w/exp vol 

5.00 $42.50 $212.50 $42,500.00 
$42,500.00 

2.00 $71.07 $142.14 $28,428.00 
2.00 $71.07 $142.14 $28,428.00 

$56,856.00 

2.00 $71.07 $142.14 $28,428.00 
$28,428.00 

5.00 $66.56 $332.80 $66,560.00 
$66,560.00 

3.00 $60.00 $180.00 $36,000.00 
0.25 $60.00 $15.00 $3,000.00 
0.25 $60.00 $15.00 $3,000.00 
1.00 $60.00 $60.00 $12,000.00 
3.00 $60.00 $180.00 $36,000.00 
2.00 $60.00 $120.00 $24,000.00 
2.00 $60.00 $120.00 $24,000.00 

$138,000.00 

0.50 $32.76 $16.38 $3,276.00 
$3,276.00 

0.50 $42.50 $21.25 $4,250.00 
$4,250.00 

2.00 $47.50 $95.00 $19,000.00 
2.00 $47.50 $95.00 $19,000.00 
2.00 $47.50 $95.00 $19,000.00 

$57,000.00 

0.50 $288.49 $144.25 $28,849.00 

0.50 $288.49 $144.25 $28,849.00 
1.00 $288.49 $288.49 $57,698.00 

$115,396.00 

0.25 $43.27 $10.82 $2,163.50 
0.25 $43.27 $10.82 $2,163.50 
1.00 $43.27 $43.27 $8,654.00 

0.50 $43.27 $21.64 $4,327.00 
3.00 $43.27 $129.81 $25,962.00 
5.00 $43.27 $216.35 $43,270.00 



Section 8(c)(23) No default to the City Review for 50th District Court 
Refer app lications to departments and track the progress of applications 
Section 8(c)(15) community outreach and education strategies 
Section 8(c)(16) charitable plans 
Prepare applications for appeals with hearing officer and/or commission 
Issue permits or denial letters 

Hearing Officer 
Section 16 appeal review 

City Attorney 

Review any legal questions related to applications that arise 
Appeal Process 
Provisioning Center Community Benefits Agreements 

TOTAL CITY CLERK: 

TOTAL HEARING OFFICER: 

TOTAL CITY ATTORNEY: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED ADMINISTRATIVE COST TO REVIEW AND APPROVE APPLICATION (COST PER APPLICATION) 

TOTAL ESTIMATED ADMINISTRATIVE COST TO REVIEW AND APPROVE APPLl(ATION : 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE (APPLICATION FEE) -ADMINISTRATIVE COST TO REVIEW (TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENSES): 

City Employee Position 

Planning Manager 
City Clerk 
Treasurer 
DPW Director 
Income Tax Director 

3rd party contractors 
Wade Trim - Building and Safety (on average 11 full time employees) 
Oakland County Sheriff (Contract 2019 - Patrol Investigator, no fill. 18 officers at 2,080 houses 
Fire Inspector - assume same rate as Wade Trim. Could not determine based on contract. 
Financia l Advisor to City Clerk 
Lega l Advisor to City Clerk 
Hearing Officer 

Avg Hours 
per task Rate Fee Tota l w/exp vol 

2.00 $43.27 
3.00 $43.27 
3.00 $43.27 
2.00 $43.27 
0.75 $43.27 
0.25 $43.27 

4.00 $70.00 

10.00 $125.00 

Salary Hours 

$88,400.00 2080.00 
$90,000.00 2080.00 
$88,400.00 2080.00 

$98,800.00 2080.00 
$68,140.00 

$86.54 $17,308.00 
$129.81 $25,962.00 
$129.81 $25,962.00 

$86.54 $17,308.00 

$32.45 $6,490.50 
$10.82 $2,163.50 

$280.00 

$1,250.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$5,000.00 

Rate per hour 

$42.50 
$43.27 
$42.50 
$47.50 
$32.76 

$181,734.00 

$56,000.00 
$56,000.00 

$250,000.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$250,000.00 

$1,000,000.00 
$0.00 

Annual Contracts Hours Rate per hour 

$1,626.00 22880.00 $71.07 
$2,492.00 37440.00 $66.56 

$60.00 
$288.49 

$70.00 



Medical Marlfuana Application Fee calculation 
9/9/2019 
Figures assume volume of __ applications: 

Procedure: Hours and tasks were reviewed with personnel from various departments of the City. Hours are an average per facility- some facilit les and applications with supporting 
documentation may be much larger than others and require more review and Inspection. Rates were determined based on sa larles of employees or average hourly rate of 3rd party 
contractors most recent contract. 

Planning and Zoning 
Average Hours 

Rate Fee 
per task 

Total w/exp vol Clerk's Revisions 

Review scaled location area map of the medical marijuana facllity and surrounding areas. 5.00 40.87 
.00 46.87 -5peciat-exemptiorruse"Tev' 

Site-Plarneview-------------------------------------------------5· :66- $-----,rn:1!7 

$ 204 .35 

$ 264.~!i 
$ 204:35 

$ 40,870.00_ 
$ 
$ 

40,870.00 
----~46;B76:ee-

PUb1rrtmrft!]nrnlOeclur-e-~-------------------------;_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_--:c_-:c"'c_":__--:_,~--:_--:_'c""cc_~'~":_~':__--:_--:_--:_--:_--:_,"'==----. 0 $ 40.8 C,4.35 $ 
$ 

4o,a,o:oo---
163,4so.oo I $ TOTAL PLANNING AND ZONING: 

Building 
-Pef/efffl-ll"ilaiAg-lAspe<tiaA-eA.faeilily-aAIH"PP"""'l!-O"Ettfllef""'i&A---------------- --------------ir. a--s;--+~1-5----e&4r--5------llBi55,,.;,2B,B44c.fli88>-.88 $ 71.87 $ 426.42 $ 

PerfomrMed 1a11ical 111specli011 Di I facility a11d supper th 1g ducu111e11tatio11 85,284.ee

Pe, fo1111 Electrical l11spectiu11 011 facility and suppu1 lil1g ducu,nentat_i=----------------------~--------,;-flt,-~-"""1--fl,-;---,t 1c=--<-----.8c'e5,..,2"8·4:'00" 

6.66 $ 71.67 $ 426.42 $ 

71.07 416.42 

Pei fo1111 Plu111Lh1g l11spectiu11 011 facility a11d suppu1 li11g Jucu111e11tat1011 85,284.ee-6.66 71.67 426.42 $ 
Review Floor plans of the medical marijuana facility, as well as a site survey. 28,428.00 2.00 71.07 142.14 $ 
Review Buildlng elevations and description of all exterior elevatlon of the proposed medlcal Marijuana facility 28,428.00 

r~----TO_T_A_L_B_U_IL_D_IN_G_IN_S_P-ECT-IO-N-,-------~---~--~=~'-------3~97~,~99~2~.o"-,o i 2.00 71.07 142.14 $ 

Fire 
Perform-flre-lnspectlorro~cilft·v--------------------------------------------ficAA~.----'1-+ .0 71.87 
Review hazardous material plan 

TOTAL FIRE: 

Police 
Review Medical Marijuana Facility Security Plan 

TOTAL POLICE: 

Finance 
Review-p,eef-ef-eWf!ership-struettl,e-ef.t:l'le-e"tlty-tAat--ieleFttifies-lfle-&WfletSAlfrPe-R:eAtage-flel8-by---eaek-5takeheleleraA8-6FgaAllatleA-E-hai:t.wltA-fla-mes 

-oteach-person-a·nd-posltlon-descrlptlo 

Review affidavit that neither the appllcant nor any stakeholder of the appllcant Is In default to the City. (See modlf!calton on Clerk's worksheet) 

2.00 71.07 

5.00 $ 66.56 

0.50 60,00 

1.50 60.00 

4'lir.4 

142.14 

$ 332.80 

30.00 

90.00 

$ 

~,-----BS;x8"'68-

28,428.00 
113,712.00 

66,560.74 
66,560.74 i 

6,000.00 

18,000.00 . 

3.00 $ 60,00 180.00 $ fteviewthe-a-pplica11t's business pla11 36,000.00 

2.00 $ 60.00 120.00 $ Review-proposed-patient-recordkeeping-pla11 ti ,at t1 acks qda11tlt/e$"'$0/d-to-tnd ilfidttat-patients-and--cattgivers;-anchvill-monitorlnvento.-vc--~--- 24,000.00 
1.00 $ 60.00 60.00 $ R-eview-tl'le-marl<etlngj'"'8dvertlslng;-a-nd--bttsfness-promotiorrptm-fortl1e pa oposed 111edical 111a1 ijmmafactf' 12,000.00 
3.00 $ 60,00 180.00 $ Review ducu111e11ts describing tl1e financial st,actare arid fir1a11ci11g of p1oposed 111edical 111a1ijaa11a facility. ~------------------"=_,c-~='-"----===-----'--------=3-"6'"'0::c00"'.0::c0e-, 

132,000.00 1 

Department of Public Works/WRC 
Review of traffic flow In and out of facility 
Review fadllty sanitation plan. 

TOTAL FINANCE: 

2.00 
2.00 
2.00 

$ 
$ 
$ 

45.68 91.35 
45.68 91.35 
45.68 91.35 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

18,270.00 
18,270.00 
18,270.00 

$ 
Review for indu~trial discharge. 

TOTAL DP_~~/_W_R_C_: ----------------~----~5~4,~8~10~.o~o~' 

Clerk 
Review proof of ownership of the entire premises where in the medical marijuana facility is to operated; or written consent from the property owner for 
use of the premises and a manner requiring llcensure under this ordinance along with a copy of the lease for the pr~mlses. 
Review LARA application documents 
Review proof of an adequate premises llablllty and casualty Insurance policy In the amount not exceeding the requirements addressed in_the Medica l 
Marijuana Facilities Licensing Act or applicable State laws. 
Review affidavit that the transfer of Marijuana to and from the medical marijuana facilltles shall be In c~mpllance with the MMMA and the Medlcal 
Marijuana Facllltles licensing Act or other applicable State Laws. 

6.45 
6 $ 36.4!; 

0.25 40.87 
0.25 40.87 

1.00 40.87 

0.50 40.87 

Review appllcatlon ·1n Its entirety and certify all required materials have been presented and approved by vrar-"loccu~s~d•~e~•~rt~m~•~n-"ts~o~f~•h~•~C~it~v~---------~=~-~= 
I TOTAL CLERK: 

8.00 ,40.87 

City Attorney 
Review any legal questions related to applications that arise 10.00 $ 125 ,00 

TOTAL CITY ATTORNEY: 

36:45 
30.4!; 

$ 10.22 

$ 10.22 

40.87 

20.43 
326.92 

$ 1,250.00 

2,043.27 
2,043.27 

8,173.08 

250,000.00 
250,000.00 I 

40,670.00 $ 122,610.00 savings 

56,856.00 $ 341,136.00 savings 

28,428.00 $ 85,284.00 savings 

$ 549,030.00 savings 



Total estimated administrative cost to review and approve appllcatlon (cost per applicatlon) 

Total estimated administrative cost to review and approve appllcatlon 

Total estimated with original costs in budget for external support 

'8/(W) vs adopted budget __ 

City Employee Position 
City Planner 
City Clerk 

Finance Director 

DPW Director 
HR Manager 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Salary 

85,000 
85,000 

124,800 
95,004 

63,336 

3rd party contractors Annual Contrac 
Wade Trim - Building and Safety (on average 11 full time employees) 1,626,000 

Oakland County Sheriff (Contract 2019 - Patrol Investigator, no fill. 18 officers at 2,080 hou $ 2,492,034 

Fire Inspector- assume same rate as .Wade Trim. Could not determine based on contract. 

Hours 
2,080.00 

2,080.00 

2,080.00 

2,080.00 

2,080.00 

Hours 
22,880.00 

37,440.00 

Rate per hour 
40.87 

40.87 

60.00 

45 .68 

30.45 

71.07 

66.56 

Average Hours 
per task 

Rate Fee Tota l w/ exp vol 

6,362.33 

1,272,465.51 

$ 1,491,360,51 

$ (1,272,465,51): 

Implied per adopted budget 

960,000 Total est FA cost 

4,800 PER app fee 
60 rate 

80 Avg hrs per task 

Clerk's Revis ions 



u 
ITTEE 

REPORT 



FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE NOTES 

September 10, 2019 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chaii-person Patrice Waterman and Council President Kermit 
Mayor: Deii-dre \v'aterman 
Hughey Newsome 
Captain Andre Ewing 
Detective Sargent Hicks 

Start time: 4:00 p.m. 
AGENDA 

A. Sherriff's DPU Unit 
-In a report, there is a proposed amendment to the Sherriffs contract with the City of Pontiac. There is strike 
through language which will represent changes to reflect additions from the proposed DPU, which was 
proposed by the Sherriff's office. The total additional cost to the city would have been $729,150. This includes 
a Sergeant and 4 Deputy II officers. The administration will present a counterproposal in Public Safety 
subcommittee on 9/13, per a previous commitment. 
-A resolution was also given by the public safety subcommittee. 
-Detective Sargent Hicks has been running the DPU unit for about three years. Sargent Hicks teaches active 
shooter training and did the ALICE Program at United Shore. 
-The day-to-day work of the unit consists of, assisting the detective bureau, talking to witnesses, following-up 
·with interviews, targeting the street, responding to shootings and community violence and assisting crime 
stoppers. 
- The unit stays in areas where there is more crime and tries to get guns out of the hands of young people. The 
unit focuses on road patrol and apartment complexes in an effort to curb crime. The unit deals with drug deals, 
violent crimes, looks at social media pages and does surveillance. The unit took five guns off the street last 
week. 
The unit can cover half the city and does not get dispatched in the traditional way. 
The unit works with other special units and has solved three homicides. 
\v'hen a crime is solved, typically it's because of the response time, when the investigation starts. 
The unit doesn't get off until late and is extremely valuable with investigations. The shift was from 5:00 p.m. 
until 3:00 a.m. However, the start time will change to allow for the unit to have more time before the shift ends 
in order to start an investigation. 
How can there be a cost reduction? Changing the shift time, so there is less overtime. Possibly reducing the 
number of deputies by one, as the Sargent or supervisor is necessary. 

B. Art Dunlap Park 
Ml Concourse would like to donate $17,390 to the City and have the city to pay a contractor for improvements 
to the park. To do this, the budget will have to be amended. This will be a three step process: 

a. The money has to be received 
b. The money has to be appropriated 
c. A contractor has to receive it. 

A series of budget amendments will be given to the Clerk on Thursday, for Tuesday's Council meeting. 
A resolution should be added that can include the proposed amendments. 
Council also passed a resolution to include roll-overs from FY 2019. 

1 



C. New Business 

Reports for July 2019 financial activities 

Items of interest: 

• The total cash and investments in all funds for the City as of7 /31/2019 was $52,208,383. The General fund 
portion of the total amount of cash is $16,061,902. The net increase in the balance compared to the previous 
month is as the result of increased income tax collection. 

e Income tax collections for the current fiscal year vs prior fiscal year. Cash receipts were $1,159,331 at 
7/31/2019 compared to $1,122,804 during the month of7 /31/2018 (unaudited). 

e11 Property tax collections as of 8/13/2019 show a total amount of City millages collected as $11,079,397.09 vs 
$12,559,699.81 billed, which is approximately 88% 

Budget Amendments are needed in order to pay for expenditures for the following: 

1. · Public Improvement Fund: projects for City Hall lot repairs and Building additions were not 
completed in FY 19. The balance is not yet known, since the books for FY 19 are not closed. This 
impacts account numbers 445-265-974.021(City Hall Lot Repairs) and 445-265-976.00l(Building 
Additions). 

2. Major Street Fund: the work on Perry Street and Iviill Street projects were not completed in FY 19 
and more money will be needed in FY 20. This impacts account numbers 202-563-987.000(Perry 
Street) and 202-463-988.00 (Iviill Street). 

3. Local Street Fund: The Highwood Blvd and Kettering projects were not completed in FY 19 and will 
need more money in 20. This impacts account numbers 203-463-989.000 (Highwood Blvd) and 203-
463-990.00 (K.ettering) 

4. Cemetery Fund: approximately $38,000 will be needed to do some crypt front repairs. This work 
would be at both cemeteries, Ottawa Park and Oak Hill. Money will be need to be moved from building 
maintenance into professional services. 

5. Mowing: Code Enforcement's budget needs more money, so $30,000 will be needed and should be 
moved from Wade Trim 101-690-818-060 to 101-733-818.006. 

The budget for medical marijuana may be incorrect and need to be amended. There should be a tracking 
mechanism so everything related to marihuana and marihuana should have a separate account. The application 
fee could not be more than $5,000 and had to be justified. The cost to operate is separate from the revenue. 

D. Questions posed by the subcommittee to the Administration: 

1. Blight Officer: No money has been spent on a Blight Officer. 

2. Sherriff's DPU unit (See above) 

3. Street Repairs at Stonegate and Golf Drive condos: no money has been spent on Golf Drive. 
Discussions regarding repair status has been sent to the DP\v' Director and he will provide a response 
in a separate report. The repairs at Stonegate are out of the scope because they are private roads. 

4. Repairs at the 50th District Court: the City has spent a total of$252,875 at the court building. Roughly 
$4,000 was on an HVAC. 

5. National League of Cities (NLC): the share of invoice will be paid by the Executive soon. 

2 



6. Villages of Bloomfield: there is a commitment to provide $2M worth of jobs, job training or a $2M 
care-out of business for Pontiac contractors. Satisfactory progress has been reported in the first year. 
Once a new Economic Development Director is put in place, the City will re-establish a reporting a 
cadence. OU & Marshall plan was done with $150,000. The Promise Zone is paying for 18 years and. 
over. The City needs to determine whether the Village of Bloomfield has provided job training etc. 

7. Road Kill & Dream Cruise Budgets: the budget is incomplete as sponsors have not yet paid, the 
program now includes the Pontiac Music Festival, the Sherriffs Office and Fire Department have not 
fully billed and ticket sales are not yet complete. Once all is finalized, administration will prepare a final 
report. 

Adjourned: 5:00 pm 

3 



# 



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE 

This Settlement Agreement and Release ("Agreement") is entered into effective as of the __ day 
of September Aligl,st, 2018 (the "Effective Date"), by and among OTT AW A TOWER II, LLC, a Michigan 
limited liability company, and the NORTII BAY DRYWALL, INC. PROFIT SHARING PLAN & TRUST, 
a California pension and profit sharing trust, (individually a "Plaintiff' and collectively herein "Plaintiffs" 
or "Ottawa Towers"), and the CITY OF PONTIAC, a Michigan municipal corporation, ("City"), LOUIS 
SCIITMMEL, an individual formerly acting as the Emergency Manager of the City of Pontiac, ("Emergency 
Manager"), OAKLAND COUNTY ("County"), a Michigan municipal corporation, and the OAKLAND 
COUNTY BUILDING AUTIIORITY, a Michigan building authority, (collectively herein "Defendants"). 
The Plaintiffs and Defendants are hereinafter individually a "Party" and collectively the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. On October 30, 1979, the City, the Pontiac Downtown Development Authority, and the 
Downtown Pontiac Development Company entered into a Comprehensive Development Agreement 
("Development Agreement"), recorded at Liber 7770, Page 127, Oakland County Records, that required, 
among other obligations, that the developer construct a parking deck (the "Deck"), a plaza (the "Plaza"), 
and other improvements on the public sites of a certain parcel of land located in the City of Pontiac, now 
commonly known as the "Phoenix Center." 

B. The Development Agreement provided that the City would convey certain parcels of land within 
the project area to the developer to develop various buildings on the private sites within the project area 
including, but not limited to, two office buildings that are now known as the Ottawa Towers. 

C. On May 8, 1980, a Declaration of Easements ("Declaration of Easements") was executed and 
recorded at Liber 7788, Page 01, Oakland County Records, that created certain easements and other rights 
and obligations as referenced therein, 

D. The Ottawa Towers office buildings are now owned by Ottawa Tower II, LLC and the North 
Bay Drywall, Inc, Profit Sharing Plan and Trust. 

E. On July 5, 2012, the City's Emergency Manager issued Order S-221 Regarding the Approval to 
Request the County of Oakland to Approve the Demolition of the Phoenix Center, Thereafter, in July 
2012, the Ottawa Towers commenced litigation against Defendants to prevent the demolition and to assert 
related claims against the Defendants (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 12-130331-CH, the "2012 
Case"), The City and County filed counterclaims against the Ottawa Towers. On November 30, 2012, the 
Oakland County Circuit Court entered a preliminary injunction preventing the demolition of the Phoenix 
Center, among other relief. At the time the case was commenced, the County held title to the Phoenix 
Center. However, during the pendency of the case, the County transferred title to the Phoenix Center back 
to the· City, and thereafter the County dismissed its counterclaim. 

F.- On March 28, 2014, the City filed a condemnation action against the Ottawa Towers, among 
others, relating to the Phoenix Center (Oakland County Case No. 14-139761-CC, the "2014 Case"). The 
City's condemnation action was dismissed in October 2014 by the Oakland County Circuit Court, which 
dismissal was thereafter affirmed upon appeal; however, the Ottawa Towers' claim for reimbursement of 
attorney fees and costs under MCL 213,66 remains pending. Both the 2012 Case and the 2014 Case are 
referred to herein as the "Litigation." 

G. The Parties participated in mediation facilitated by the Hon. Gerald Rosen (retired), and the 
Parties agreed upon the material terms of the settlement of their disputes in the form of a Proposed Term 
Sheet dated April 30, 2018 ("Proposed Term Sheet"). Based upon the Proposed Term Sheet, the Parties 



now desire to memorialize the settlement by this Agreement which shall control and which has been duly 
authorized by all Parties and, as necessary, their duly authorized officials or agents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements herein contained, 
the Parties agree as follows: 

1.0 PARTIES TO TIDS AGREEMENT 

1.1 As used in this Agreement, "Plaintiffs" shall include Ottawa Tower II, LLC, and North 
Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan and Trust, their respective owners, managers, employees, officers, 
trustees, members, agents, attorneys, past and present, and their successors and assigns. The signatories for 
Plaintiffs acknowledge and represent that they have been duly authorized by their respective entities to 
execute this Agreement and are acting in their official capacity, 

1.2 As used in this Agreement, "Defendants" shall include the City, the Emergency Manager, 
the County and the Oakland County Building Authority and their elected officials, emergency managers, 
appointees, employees, insurers, representatives, agents, attorneys, past and present, and their successors, 
and assigns. The signatories for Defendants acknowledge and represent that they have been duly authorized 
by their respective entities to execute this Agreement and are acting in their official capacity. Defendants 
represent that no approval is required from the State of :Michigan, the Michigan Department of Treasury or 
any Transition Advisory Board. 

2.0 DISMISSAL OF LITIGATION AND DISCHARGE OF LIENS 

2.1 The Parties agree that upon payment in full of the settlement payments as set forth in 
Section 3.1.1 and 3.1.3, they shall execute and concurrently submit to the court for entry a stipulated order 
of voluntary dismissal with prejudice in the forrn attached hereto as Exhibit 1 that resolves all pending 
claims and closes Case Nos, 12-130331-CH and 14-139761-CC. By entering into this Agreement, no Party 
admits to any wrongdoing, liability, or responsibility for damages of any kind whatsoever. 

2.2 Concurrently, upon payment in full by the City of the amounts set forth in Section 3 .1.1 
and 3.1.3, Plaintiffs shall discharge and release any and all existing liens that Plaintiffs have filed against 
the Phoenix Center. The discharge and release of the liens shall be recorded witl1 the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds at the expense of the Plaintiffs, Any future lien claims after the Effective Date of this 
Agreement shall be subject to conclusion of the alternative dispute resolution process established in Section 
6.4, below, prior to the filing of the liens. 

3.0 PAYMENTS 

3.1 In consideration of the immediate discharge of all liens and encumbrances on the Phoenix 
Center as provided herein at Section 2.2, and the full, final and absolute release of all claims described in 
Section 4.0 Release and Waiver of Claims, tl1e City shall pay Ottawa Towers II, LLC and North Bay 
Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust, jointly and severally, a total of Seven :Million Three Hundred 
and Fifty Thousand Dollars and 00/100 ($7,350,000.00), without any offset or deduction for any reason, in 
the manner and forrn as provided below: 

3.1.1 Three Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,500,000.00) (the "Initial 
Payment") shall be paid upon the execution of all settlement documents, including stipulations and 
orders for dismissal with prejudice of the Oakland County Circuit Court Case No, 12-130331-CH, 
with One Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,750,000.00) paid to Ottawa Tower 
II, LLC, and One Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,750,000.00) paid to North 
Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust (Charles Stephens, Trustee). 



3.1.2 Three Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,500,000.00) payable, to North 
Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust (Charles Stephens, Trustee), in five (5) annual 
installments of $700,000.00 ("annual installment payment(s)"), without interest, the first annual 
installment shall be due on the date all settlement documents are executed. No interest shall accrue 
on any balance due hereunder. The City may elect to pay the balance of the remaining settlement 
amount in full at any time, If the City fails to make any installment payment within twenty (20) 
days of the date that such payment is due, then the entire remaining balance shall be due and payable 
immediately. Upon written notice from North Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust 
(Charles Stephens, Trustee), or its counsel, given at least 90 days before an installment payment is 
due, the City shall then pay some or all of the remaining installment payments to Ottawa Tower II, 
LLC and/or such other payee(s) as set forth in such notice, 

3.1.3 The City shall pay Plaintiffs the sum of Three Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($350,000.00) as full and final reimbursement for all attorney fees and costs incurred by Plaintiffs 
in the condemnation action:being Oakland Circuit Case No. 14-139761-CC. This reimbursement 

· shall be paid with the Initial Payment in Section 3.1.1 above. Upon payment, Plaintiffs and the 
City shall submit to the court a final stipulated order of dismissal to close the 2014 Case. 

3,2 To secure the payments due to Plaintiffs in 3.1.2 above, the City will execute a confession 
of judgment (aJk/a "pocket judgment"), in favor of Plaintiffs, which shall expire and terminate by its terms 
upon delivery of the final payment under Section 3.1.2. If the City fails to make timely payment of any 
amount required in Section 3.1, Plaintiffs may enter the confession of judgment with the Court. The 
confession of judgment shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 2. Unless and until there is a default 
in payment by the City, Plaintiffs' counsel shall hold the confession of judgment and shall immediately 
provide the confession of judgment to the City's counsel upon the City's payment of the City's final 
payment required by Section 3.1,2. 

3.3 The Parties acknowledge and represent that none of the other Parties, or their attorneys, 
have made any representations regarding the tax consequences of this AgreemenL Each Party shall be 
solely responsible for any tax consequences resulting from the Agreement or the payments or other actions 
taken to effectuate its provisions. Any and all reporting or payment of taxes, if any, shall be governed by 
and in compliance with state and federal laws and regulations governing the same, Plaintiffs will provide 
the City with a completed Form W-9 for reporting of the payments to each of the Plaintiffs by the City to 
the Internal Revenue Service. 

4.0 RELEASE AND WAIVER OF CLAIMS BY PLAINTIFFS 

4.1 Other than as set forth in this Agreement, Plaintiffs hereby forever release, waive, and 
discharge each of the Defendants and their agents, officers, elected officials, directors, supervisors, 
emergency managers, appointees, employees, insurers, representatives, agents, attorneys, past and present, 
in their official and/or individual capacities, and their successors, predecessors and assigns, from any and 
all suits, causes of action, complaints, charges, obligations, demands or claims of any kind, whether in law 
or in equity, either direct or indirect, and known or unknown, which Plaintiffs ever had or may have as of 
the Effective Date of this Agreement (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Claims") related to any of the 
allegations as pied in any of the versions of Plaintiffs' Complaints as filed in the Litigation described herein 
from the beginning of time up to and through the Effective Date of this Agreement. Plaintiffs' release and 
waiver of claims specifically includes, but is not limited to, the release, waiver, and discharge of the 
following: 

4.1.1 Any and all Claims actually pied or that could have been pied as part of the 
Litigation or any other action at law or in equity; 



4.1.2 Any and all Claims of alleged violations of any federal, state or local statute, 
ordinance, regulation, judicial precedent or executive order, including, but not limited to, claims of 
breach of contract, brea~h of declaration of easements, and/or any other applicable federal, state or 
local Jaw, regulation, rule or ordinance of any kind; 

4.1.3 Any and all Claims in tort, not limited to, any claims for innocent 
misrepresentation, fraudulent misrepresentation, fraud, negligence, breacp. of implied covenant of 
good faith and fair dealing, misappropriation, self-dealing, defamation, libel, slander, intentional 
infliction of emotional distress, for emotional distress damages, breach of fiduciary duty, business 
torts, and all other tort claims of any kind; 

4.1.4 Any and all Claims for attorney's fees, sanctions and costs under statute, including, 
but not limited to MCL 213.66 and 42 USC§§ 1983 and 1988 (b) and (c), court rules or case law; 

4.1.5 Any and all Claims arising under the United States Constitution or the Michigan 
Constitution of 1963, as amended, 

4.2 Plaintiffs acknowledge and agree that this Release and Waiver of Claims covers all of the 
aforementioned claims and potential claims, which arose on or accrued from the beginning of time and 
through the Effective Date of this Agreement, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, 
matured or not matured, and that this constitutes the essential basis of this Agreement. This Release and 
Waiver of Claims shall be read as broadly as possible such that the Defendants shall have no further 
obligations or liability of any sort or nature to Plaintiffs, directly or indirectly, in the existing Litigation 
other than as provided in this Agreement. 

5.0 RELEASE AND W AfVER OF CLAIMS BY DEFENDANTS 

5.1 Other than as set forth in this Agreement, Defendants hereby forever release, waive, and 
discharge each of the Plaintiffs and their agents, trustees, members, managers, officers, directors, 
supervisors, employees, insurers, representatives, agents, attorneys, past and present, in their official and/or 
individual capacities, and their successors, predecessors and assigns, from any and all suits, causes of 
action, complaints, charges, obligations, demands or claims of any kind, whether in law or in equity, either 
direct or indirect, and known or unknown, which Defendants ever had or may have as of the Effective-Date 
of this Agreement (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Claims") related to any of the allegations made 
or that could have been made in the Litigation from the beginning of time up to and through the Effective 
Date of this Agreement. Defendants' release and waiver of claims specifically includes, but is not limited 
to, the release, waiver, and discharge of the following: 

5.1.1 Any and all Claims actually pied or that could have been pied as part of the 
Litigation or any other action at law or in equity; 

5.1.2 Any and all Claims of alleged past violations of any federal, state or local statute, 
ordinance, regulation, judicial precedent or executive order, including, but not limited to, claims of 
breach of contract, breach of declaration of easements, inverse condemnation, improper or illegal 
taking of property rights, reformation/modification of easements, slander of title, specific 
performance and/or any other applicable federal, state or local law, regulation, rule or ordinance of 
any kind; 

5.1.3 Any and all Claims in tort, not limited to, any claims for innocent 
misrepresentation, fraudulent misrepresentation, fraud, negligence, breach of implied covenant of 
good faith and fair.dealing, misappropriation, self-dealing, defamation, libel, slander, intentional 

4 



infliction of emotional distress, for emotional distress damages, breach of fiduciary duty, business 
torts, and all other tort claims of any kind; 

5.1,4 Any and all Claims for attorney's fees, sanctions and costs under statute, including, 
but not limited to MCL 213.66 and 42 USC§§ 1983 and 1988 (b) and (c), court rules or case law; 

5,1.5 Any and all Claims arising under the United States Constitution or the Michigan 
Constitution of 1963, as amended. 

5.2 Defendants acknowledge and agree that this Agreement covers all of the aforementioned 
claims and potential claims, which arose on or accrued from the beginning of time and through the Effective. 
Date of this Agreement, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, matured or not matured, 
and that this constitutes the essential basis of this Agreement. This Release and Waiver of Claims shall be 
read as broadly as·possible such that the Plaintiffs shall have no further obligations or liability of any sort 
or nature to Defendants, directly or indirectly, in the existing Litigation other than as provided in this 
Agreement. 

6.0 REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OF THE PHOENIX CENTER AND TUNNEL 

6.1 The City is the owner of the Plaza, the Deck, and the Orchard Lake Road Tunnel 
("Tunnel"), subject to the existing encumbrances on title, as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

6.2 In addition to the payments set forth in Section 3.0 of this Agreement, the City shall pay 
up to Six Million & 00/100 ($6,000,000.00) dollars over a ten (10) year period beginning as of the Effective 
Date of this Agreement for the repair and maintenance of the Phoenix Center so as to do all maintenance 
and repairs necessary to bring and maintain the Phoenix Center into conformance with the requirements of 
the International Property Maintenance Code (2015 edition), as referenced in the Michigan Building Code 
and-the Michigan Rehabilitation Code (2015 edition)(herein "Code"), 

6,3 The repairs and maintenance that the City commits to make shall include all electrical, 
lighting, elevator and structural repairs in the north and south sections of the Deck to be completed within 
the first two years after the Effective Date of this Agreement as more fully detailed on Exhibit 3 attached 
hereto. The repairs and maintenance performed by the City shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner 
in conformance with the Code, A detailed schedule to perform the specific work on the Phoenix Center as 
required by Exhibit 3 shall be prepared by' the Parties' respective engineering contractors and/or experts 
after meeting to develop a specific scope of work, scheduling, and staging; provided, however, that the 
minimum required work and timeframes listed on Exhibit 3 shall not be delayed or diminished in scope. 
Plaintiffs have provided the City with all of Plaintiffs' relevant engineering reports, drawings, 
specifications, and cost estimates for the completed repairs to the Phoenix Center as of the Effective Date 
of this Agreement, without any representation that the drawings or source documents may be useable by 
the City without paying fees to, or retaining for itself, the preparers and/or experts. 

6.4 In the event Plaintiffs (or successors in title) believe that the City is not maintaining or 
repairing the Phoenix Center in compliance with its obligations hereunder or under the Declaration, then 
the following procedures shall be followed: Plaintiffs (or successors in title) shall provide written notice to 
the City identifying and explaining the alleged deficiency. The City shall then have seven (7) days after 
receipt of such written notice to confirm in writing that the City will remedy the deficiency expeditiously 
within a defined time period specified in the City's written response, If the City either declines or otherwise 
fails to confirm that a remedy will be made expeditiously, or fails to respond in writing, or if the time period 
specified by the City is not reasonable or expeditious, Plaintiffs (or successors in title) may commence an 
expedited mediation by contacting Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc., now known as 
"JAMS" (and, if available, utilizing Hon. Judge Gerald Rosen) or another qualified mediation organization 

5 



if JAMS is unavailable. Plaintiffs (or successors in title) and the City shall mediate their dispute within 
seven (7) days, or on the first mutually available date, but no later than thirty (30) days after Plaintiff's 
initial written request letter lo the City. The mediator's fees and expenses shall be borne equally by the 
parties, but the mediator shall award to the substantially-prevailing party the mediator's fees and expenses, 
and the reasonable attorneys' fees and costs ineurred by such party. If the mediator is unable to resolve the 
dispute within thirty (30) days of the mediator's retention to serve as mediator, or if the City declines, fails 
and/or refuses to participate in the mediation and in good faith, and the mediator terminates the mediation, 
then the parties shall proceed as provided by the Declaration relating to liens. Notwithstanding the forgoing, 
nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed or construed to permit or justify the City to delay responding to 
and remedying any dangerous conditions for which it is responsible to repair under the Declaration. 

7.0 PARKING RIGHTS AND ACCESS 

The Parties have agreed to amend the Declaration of Easements in order to clarify Plaintiffs' 
parking and access rights with respect to the Deck. The form of amendment to the Declaration of Easement 
is set forth as Exhibit 4 and shall be executed and recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds 
concurrent with the discharge of liens referenced herein. In.addition to the provisions of the Declaration of 
Easements, the access and parking rights by Plaintiffs, their tenants, and employees in the Phoenix Center 
are set forth on Exhlbit 5. The City shall install a card-reader system (or equivalent) and thereafter issue 
parking cards to the Ottawa Towers as set forth on Exhlbit 5. Plaintiffs represent that the parking cards 
referenced therein are for use only by Plaintiffs (or successors in title) and their tenants and employees and 
shall not be resold or transferred to any other person or entity.· The City shall provide replacement cards 
to the Ottawa Towers immediately upon request from Plaintiffs or their tenants or their successors in title, 
as set forth on Exhibit 5, 

8.0 INTERIM MAINTENANCE, AND MANAGEMENT OF THE PHOENIX CENTER 

In anticipation of the City reassumine and undertakin!! its obli!!ations for sole day-to-dav propertv 
mana!!ement of the Deck. Plaintiffs shall continue their services at the Phoenix Center, in conformity with 
their same level, extent and scope of services as of the date of the execution of this Agreement, to perform 
the day-to-day maintenance, operation§., and facilities management for the South Side (being that portion 
of the Deck located to the south of Orchard Lake Road) of the Deck that is in use by Plaintiffs, their tenants 
and employees, as set forth on Exhibit 6, for $9,810.00 per month payable in advance on the first day of 
each month to be paid by the City to Plaintiffs commencing upon May 1, 2018 through the earlier of: (i) 
the City undertaking sole day-to-day property management of the Deck, Tunnel, and Plaza as set forth on 
Exhibit 6; or (ii) six (6) months from the Effective Date of this Agreement. Plaintiffs shall name the City 
as an additional insured on its insurance policies and provide certificates of insurance to the City, This 
amount does not include charges for materials (such as salt, lightbulbs/fixtures, scaffolding, fuel, waste 
containers, etc.), permit fees, subcontractor charges (although scheduling and coordination of painting of 
lines for parking spaces is included, actual layout and painting will be by subcontractor as an additional 
cost), equipment rental or other similar non-labor expenses, or services for any activities not currently 
performed by Plaintiffs, Any and all cleanup, repairs and costs of vandalism and graffiti removal shall be 
an extra charge; provided, however, that Plaintiffs will not perform such additional work and incur such 
extra charges until first providing to the City ten (10) days' prior written notice of the need therefor. Any 
invoices submitted by Plaintiffs to the City for the period after May 1, 2018 shall be paid in full upon 
execution of this Agreement. Payments to Plaintiffs for the monthly payment under this section and also 
the monthly payment for the electrical charges relating to the Tunnel shall be made by the City through 
electronic deposit to Plaintiffs' account as provided in writing to the City by Plaintiffs with Plaintiffs' 
invoices, Any of Plaintiffs' invoices that are not timely paid by the City within twenty days shall incur a 
late fee of 5% of the amount of the invoice, plus interest of 1 % per month from the date due, 

9.0 RIGHTS IN FOYER, CONNECTOR, AND ATRIUM CONNECTOR 

6 

II Commented (MCH1]: If the outside dale for lhe conclusion of I.he 
1 process is 30 days, this should be 30 days and not 7? 



The City will execute a quitclaim deed to North Ottawa Tower II, LLC, for all of the City's claimed 
right, tide and interest in or to the Atrium Connector, which is the 2-story atrium structure adjacent to the 
Judson Tower and located upon North Bay's property between the Judson Tower and the Phoenix Center, 
in the form of quitclaim deed attached as Exhibit 7, The City acknowledges and agrees that Plaintiffs shall 
have an easement for rights to ingress and egress through the Foyer and Connector as defined in the City's 
Counterclaim to/from the Phoenix Center to/from both of Plaintiffs office towers, and-t!HH such rights are 
set forth in the Amended Declaration of Easements attached as Exhibit 4. 

10,0 REVIBW OF AGREEMENT 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that they have been advised of the right to consult with an 
attorney regarding the terms of this Agreement and their rights under this Agreement and state and federal 
statutes and common law. Each Party acknowledges that before signing this Agreement they have read the 
entire Agreement and fully understands the terms, content, and effect of the Agreement; that they have had 
the benefit of advice from an attorney of their choosing; and that they relied fully and completely on their 
own judgment and/or on the advice of their attorney in executing this Agreement. 

11.0 ASSIGNMENT 

Plaintiffs may, but are not obligated to, assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, upon the sale of 
either or both of the Towers, the sale of Ottawa Tower II, LLC, or the transfer of all, or substantially all of 
a Plaintiffs assets. 

12.0 GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement is executed under the laws of the State of Michigan, and shall be governed by, the 
laws of the State of Michigan. 

13.0 SEVERABILITY 

Each provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable, If any term or provision is held to be 
invalid, void, or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction for any reason whatsoever, such ruling 
shall not affect the validity of the other terms or the remainder of this Agreement. 

14.0 INTEGRATION 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement, and the Exhibits and schedules attached 
hereto, contains all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the Parties hereto regarding the subject 
matter of this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or 
representations concerning the subject matter of this Agreement not expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
This Agreement, including its schedules and exhibits, may not be amended, revoked, waived, changed or 
modified, except in a writing executed by all of the Parties to this Agreement. 

15.0 CLOSING AND EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS 

This Agreement and any other settlement document of which an original signature is not required 
may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 
but all of which shalJ constitute one and the same Agreement. This Agreement may be recorded by any 
Party with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 

16.0 SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

7 



The Parties understand that this Agreement covers all of the aforementioned claims and potential 
claims, which arose on or before the date that they executed this Agreement, whether known or unknown, 
suspected or unsuspected, and that this constitutes an essential term of this Agreement. The Parties 
acknowledge that, except as otherwise provided herein, the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
represent a full and complete disposition and satisfaction of each Party's legal, statutory, regulatory, and 
contractual obligations to the other Parties through the Effective Date hereof. 

17.0 SECTION HEADINGS 

The section headings contained in this Agreement are for the convenience of the Parties only and 
are not to be used in interpreting this Agreement. 

18.0 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The terms, rights and obligations of the Parties under this Agreement shall be binding on, inure to 
the benefit of, and be enforceable by any successors or assigns of the Parties, 

19.0 WARRANTIES 

Each Party and signatory hereto warrants and represents that: 

19,l The Party relies exclusively on its own judgment, and that the Party bas not been influenced 
by any statement made by or on behalf of any of the other Parties to this Agreement; 

19.2 The Party has been fully informed and has full knowledge of the terms, conditions, and 
effects of this Agreement; 

19.3 The Party has, either on its own or through its attorneys, fully investigated, to its full 
satisfaction, all the facts surrounding the various claims, controversies, and disputes and is fully satisfied 
with the terms and effects of the Agreement; 

19.4 The Party has not assigned or transferred any of the claims, demands, actions and rights 
being released by such party in this Agreement; 

19.5 The Party bas the full and complete authority to enter into this Agreement, to release the 
Claims that the Party is releasing herein, and to execute any and all documents required pursuant to this 
Agreement, and that this Agreement is binding upon the Party; and 

19.6 The Parties have executed this Agreement as their own free act and without reliance upon 
any representations, warranties, or promises other than those contained in this Agreement. 

20.0 NOTICES 

All notices, requests or other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder shall 
be given in writing, and shall be deemed received (a) when hand delivered, or (b) one(]) business day 
after delivery to FedEx or similar overnight delivery service, when posted for next business day delivery, 
or (c) when received after deposit in the U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested, or (d) when sent, if 
sent during normal business hours by email transmission, and such transmission is promptly followed by 
any of the other methods for giving notice. In all cases notices shall be addressed to the parties at their 
respective addresses as follows or to such other address as either party hereto may designate by a notice 
given in accordance with this Section: 



To City: 

With a copy to: 

To Ottawa Towers: 

With a copy to: 

Giarmarco, Mullins & Horton, P.C. 
Attn: John Clark 
Tenth Floor Columbia Center 
101 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084-5280 
Email: jclark@gmhlaw.com 

OTT AW A TOWER II, LLC 
Attn: Charles Stephens, Manager 
715 Sonthpoint Blvd., Suite B 
Petaluma, CA 94954-6836 
Email: cstephens@northbavco.com 

And: 
NORTH BAY DRYWALL, JNC. PROFIT SHARJNG PLAN & TRUST 
Attn: Charles Stephens, Trustee 
715 Sciuthpoint Blvd., Suite B 
)?e_taJ)!~a, 90- 9495_4:6_836_ _ 
Email: cstephens@northbavco.coin 

Maddin Hauser Roth & Heller, PC 
Attn: Steven D. Sallen, Esq. 
28400 Northwestern Hwy. 
Suite 200 
Southfield, MI 48034 
Email: ssallen@maddinhauser.com 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties acknowledge and agree that each is acting of their own 
free will to cause the execution of this Agreement as of the Effective Date first written above, 

WITNESSES 

Print: 

9 

Plaintiff: 

OTTAWA TOWERII,LLC 

By: Charles R. Stephens 
Its: Authorized Manager 

Plaintiff: 

NORTH BAY DRYWALL, JNC. PROFIT 

[ Formatted: Spanish (Spain) 

[ Field Code Changed 

[ Formatted, Spanish (Spain) 

( Formatted: Spanish (Spain) 



Print: 

Print: 

Print: 

Print: 

2158788v6 8/6/18 

SHARING PLAN & TRUST 

By: Charles R. Stephens 
It~: Authorized Trustee 

Defendants: 

CITY OF PONTIAC, on behalf of itself and 
LOUIS H. SCHI!Vllv!EL, formerly acting as the 
Emergency Manager of the City 

By: Deirdre Waterman 
Its: Mayor, duly authorized and approved by City 
Council Resolution No. _, 
approved __ , 2018 

OAKLAND COUNTY 

By: L. Brooks Patterson, or his designee 
Its: Oakland County Executive 

OAKLAND COUNTY BUILDING 
AUTHORITY 

By: 
Its: 

EXHIBIT 1- DISMISSAL ORDERS 

STATE OFMIClliGAN 

10 



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

OTTAWA TOWER II, LLC, A Michigan 
Limited Liability Company, and NORTH 
BAY DRYWALL, INC,, PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN & TRUST, a California 
Pension and Profit Sharing Trust, 

Plaintiffs/Counter Defendants, 
vs. 

CITY OF PONTIAC, a Ivlichigan Municipal 
Corporation, LOUIS SCHIMMEL, an individual 
acting as the Emergency Manager of the City of 
Pontiac, and OAKLAND COUNTY, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation, and OAKLAND COUNTY 
BUILDING AUTHORITY, a Michigan Building 
Authority, 

Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs. 

MICHELLE C. HARRELL (P48768) 
Maddin Hauser Wartell Roth & Heller, P.C. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
28400 Northwestern Highway, 3rd Floor 
Southfield, Michigan 48034 
(248) 354-4030 or (248) 355-5200 

JOHN C. CLARK (P51356) 
STEPHEN J. HITCHCOCK (P15005) 
JOHN L. IvllLLER (P71913) 
Giarrnarco Mullins & Horton 
Attorneys for City of Pontiac & Schimmel 
101 West Big Beaver Road, Tenth Floor 
Troy, Michigan 48084-5280 
(248) 457-7000/(248) 404-6313 

11 

Case No. 12-130331-CH 
Hon. Michael Warren 

STIPULATED 
ORDER FOR 

DISMISSAL WITH 
PREJUDICE AND 
WITHOUT COSTS 

ORFEES 

DAVID B. TIMMIS (P40539) 
Vandeveer Garzia, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant Oakland County 
840 W. Long Lake Road, Suite 600 
Troy, Ivlichigan 48098 
(248) 312-2800 

KEITH J. LERi\1INIAUX (P30190) 
Attorney for Defendants Oakland County 
1200 N. Telegraph Road, Bldg. 14E 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341 
(248) 858-0557 



THOMAS J. McCARTHY (P36755) 
JYionaghan, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant City of Pontiac and 
Louis Schimmel 
33 Bloomfield Hills Pkwy., Ste. 260 

. Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 
(248) 642-5770 

JEROME P. PESICK (P29029) 
Steinhardt Pesick & Cohen 
Co-Counsel for Plaintiffs 
380 N. Old Woodward, Ste. 120 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
(248) 646-0888 

STIPULATED ORDER FOR DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE 
AND WITHOUT COSTS OR FEES 

THIS MATTER is before the court upon the stipulation of counsel for the parties and 

with the Court being duly advised that the parties have settled this case in its entirety, and with 

the Court being otherwise fully advised in the premises: 

IT IS ORDERED THAT this case is dismissed in its entirety with prejudice and without 

costs or fees to any party. This Court retains jurisdiction to enforce the Settlement Agreement 

and Release dated effective as of September ~. 2018 which is incorporated herein by 

reference as if fully restated herein. 

This Order resolves the last pending claim and closes the case. 

CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE 

I STIPULATE TO ENTRY OF THE ABOVE ORDER: 

Isl Michelle C. Harrell 
Michelle C, Harrell (P48768) 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 

Isl John C. Clark 
John C. Clark (P51356) 
Attorney for City of Pontiac and Schimmel 

Isl David B. Timmis _____ _ 
David B. Timmis (P40539) 
Attorney for Defendant Oakland County 

12 

[ Formatted: English (United States) 



STATE OF MJCHICAN 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKL,\ND 

The Cend-e:111rntio11 Cemp/ai11r &/ :he Ci.~; ef Pontiac 
fer the ecqu.'s.':ien ~{property in:eres.'s 
for public purposes in Oakla,,d Ce1mty, Michigan 

CITY Of POJ>ITMC, a Michigan 
municipal corpOFfl-HBfl, 

Plaintiff, 

OTTAWA TO\VER II, LLC, 
a Michigan limited liability company; 
CH,6.RUlS R. STEPHENS, as Trnstee sf the 
NORTH BAY DRY1NALL, INC. PROFIT SHARJNG 
PL6t"! AND TRUST DATED OCTOBER 1, 1985, 
a California entity, 

DefenElants, 

Tilemas J. MeCarthy (P36755) 
Matthew T. Jane (P58396) 
MONAGHAN, P.C, 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
~1-oemfie!EI Hills Pkwy., Ste, 9 60 
Bloomfield Hills, MI 18301 
(118) 612 5770 

Jereme P. Pesick (P29039) 
Jasen C. Leng (P59211) 
STEINHARDT PESICK & COHEN 
Attorneys for Defendants Ottawa Tewer IT, LLC 
and Charles R. Stephens, as Trustee of the North 
Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan and Trust 
Dated October 1, 1985 
389 N. Old WooElward Ave., Suite 129 
Birmingham, MI 18009 
(218) 6·16 0888 

13 

STIPULATED ORDER OF 
DISMISSAL WITH 

PREJUDICE 

William H. Horten (P3 J 567) 
John C. Clark (P5 l 356) 
Stephen J. Hitchcock (Pl 5005) 
GIARMARCO .MULLINS & HOR+ON PC 
Attorneys fur Plaintiff 
l 01 West Big Beaver RoaEI, Tenth floor 
Troy, :MI 18984 
(218) 157 7000 

Steven D. Sallea (P36991) 
Michelle C. Harrell (P48768) 
MADDIN, HAUSER, ROTH & 
HELLER, P.C. 
At!erneys--fur DefenElants Ottawa Tower IT, LLC 
ans Charles R. Stephens, as Trustee of the North 
Bay Drywall, l11e. Profit Sharing Plaa aAEI Trust 
Dated October 1, 1985 
28100 Northwestern Hwy., SeconEI Floor 
&euthfie!EI, Ml 'I 8031 
(248) 351 ·1039 



STIPULATED ORDER FOR DIS~1I 
THIS MATTER is b 4 SS. ,L WITH PREJUD±GE 

.,,· efore the court upon the stipulation . 
"1th the Court beincr duly ad»' d of counsel for the parties ard 

"' 'ise that the · th parties have settled this ca . . 
e Court being otherwise full , d·· . se IA its entirety, and with 

) a , 1sed m the prem' HSCS; 

IT IS ORDERED T ' . H, ,T this case is dismi . . retaifJ . . ssed m its entirety .. , 1 . 
s Jlmsdiction to eHforce th S Y, iH prCJudice. This Court 

e ettlement "a ''"'reement and Rel 
30, 2018 which is incorporated h _,ease dated effective as of June 

erem by ref erence as if full , Th. . ) restated herein 

JS JS a final O ct • r er that resolves th I . ast pendmg claim and closes the case. 

I fTll 's,omas J. McCarth , 
Thom J ~ ) " as.,4cCarthy (P36755) 
' ,ttorney for City of p . ontlac 

14 



EXHIBIT 2 - CONSENT JUDGMENT, 
CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT AND AFFIDAVIT OF 

CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

OTTAWA TOWER IT, LLC, A Michigan 
Limited Liability Company, and NORTH 
BAY DRYWALL, INC., PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN & TRUST, a California 
Pension and Profit Sharing Trust, 

Plaintiffs/Counter Defendants, 
vs. 

CITY OF PONTIAC, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation, LOUIS SCIDMMEL, an individual 
acting as the Emergency Manager of the City of 
Pontiac, and OAKLAND COUNTY, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation, and OAKLAND COUNTY 
BUILDING AUTHORITY, a Michigan Building 
Authority, 

Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs. 

MICHELLE C. HARRELL (P48768) 
Maddin Hauser Roth & Heller, P.C. 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 
28400 Northwestern Highway, 3rd Floor 
Southfield, Michigan 48034 
(248) 354-4030 or (248) 355-5200 

JOHN C. CLARK (P51356) 
STEPHEN J. HITCHCOCK (P15005) 
JOHN L. MlLLER (P71913) 
Giarmarco Mullins & Horton 
Attorneys for City of Pontiac & Schimmel 
101 West Big Beaver Road, Tenth Floor 
Troy, Michigan 48084-5280 
(248) 457-7000/(248) 404-6313 

THOMAS J. McCARTHY (P36755) 
Monaghan, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant City of Pontiac and 
Louis Schimmel 
33 Bloomfield Hills Pkwy., Ste. 260 
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 
(248) 642-5770 

15 

Case No. 12-130331-CH 
Hon. Michael Warren 

CONSENT 
JUDGMENT 

DAVID B. TIMMIS (P40539) 
Vandeveer Garzia, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant Oakland County 
840 W. Long Lake Road, Suite 600 
Troy, Michigan 48098 
(248) 312-2800 

KEITH J. LERMINIAUX (P30190) 
Attorney for Defendants Oakland County 
1200 N. Telegraph Road, Bldg. 14E 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341 
(248) 858-0557 

JEROME P. PESICK (P29029) 
Steinhardt Pesick & Cohen 
Co-Counsel for Plaintiffs 
380 N. Old Woodward, Ste. 120 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
(248) 646-0888 

[ Formatted: English (United States) 



CONSENT JUDGMENT 

THIS MATTER is before the court upon the filing of an Affidavit of Confession of 

Judgment and the Confession of Judgment by the Plaintiffs pursuant to the Settlement 

Agreement and Release previously executed by Plaintiffs and Defendant City of Pontiac, and 

with the Court being otherwise fully advised in the premises: 

IT IS ORDERED THAT this case is reopened, and judgment is entered in favor of 

Plaintiffs and against Defendant City of Pontiac, in the amount of $3,500,000.00, less amounts 

paid to Plaintiffs by the City towards such amount due as of the date of entry of this Consent 

Judgment, for a total judgment due of$. ______ , This Consent Judgment shall bear 

interest at the statutory judgment interest rate until paid in full. 

This Order resolves the last pending claim and closes the case. 

CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE 

I STIPULATE TO ENTRY OF THIS CONSENT JUDGMENT 
PURSUANT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE: 

Isl Michelle C. Harrell 
Michelle C. Harrell (P48768) 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 

Isl John C. Clark 
John C. Clark (P51356) 
Attorney for City of Pontiac 

16 



CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT 

The City of Pontiac ("City"), a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby authorizes, without 
power of revocation, any attorney of any court of record to appear for the City in any such court 
after a default has been declared by Plaintiffs under the terms of tbe Settlement Agreement and 
Release dated effective June 30, 2018 (tbe "Agreement"), to waive process and service thereof, 
and to confess judgment against the City and in favor of Plaintiffs Ottawa Tower Il, LLC and 
North Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust, which judgment provides for a monetary 
consent judgment in favor of the Plaintiffs in the amount of $3,500,000.00, less the amount of any 
payments made by the City upon such amount. Plaintiffs' counsel is authorized to complete the 
Consent Judgment to state the current amount due to Plaintiffs, net of any payments then made. 

Executed as of this September-ABgHSt __ , 2018. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

City of Pontiac 
By: Deirdre Waterman 
Its: Mayor, duly authorized and approved by 
City Council Resolution No. _, 
Approved __ , 2018 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___ _ 
2018 by Deirdre Waterman, as Mayor of the City of Pontiac. 

___________ Notary Public 
_________ County, Michigan 
Acting in the County of 
My commission expires 

17 



STA TE OF MICHIGAN 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

OTTA WA TOWER II, LLC, A Michigan 
Limited Liability Company; and NORTH 
BAY DRYWALL, INC., PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN & TRUST, a California 
Pension and Profit Sharing Trust, 

Plaintiffs/Counter Defendants, 
vs. 

CITY OF PONTIAC, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation, LOUIS SCHIMMEL, an individual 
acting as the Emergency Manager of the City of 
Pontiac, ,and OAKLAND COUNTY, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation, and OAKLAND COUNTY 
BUILDING AUTHORITY, a Michigan Building 
Authority, 

Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs. 

Case No. 12-130331-CH 
Hon. Michael Warren 

AFFIDAVIT OF DEFAULT AND CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT 
AGAINST DEFENDANT CITY OF PONTIAC 

The undersigned, having been duly sworn, states the following under oath to the best of 

his/her knowledge, information and belief: 

1. I am an attorney of record in the above-captioned matter. 

2. The parties previously executed a Settlement Agreement and Release that required 

Defendant City of Pontiac to make installment payments to Plaintiffs on a timely basis. The 

Settlement Agreement and Release further provided that if such installment payments were not 

timely made to Plaintiffs, that Defendant City of Pontiac consented and confessed to entry of a 

consent judgment for the full unpaid settlement amount. 

3. Defendant City of Pontiac has defaulted upon its payment obligations as set forth 

in the Settlement Agreement and Release thereby justifying entry of the Consent Judgment 

submitted to this Court for entry. 

18 



4. The undersigned certifies the amount stated in the Consent Judgment is true and 

accurate. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, 
A Notary Public, on this __ day of 

Notary Public 

(P ___ _., 

Counsel for Plaintiffs 

19 



EXHIBIT 3 - SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE AND REPAillS 

(A) The City shall pay up to Six Million ($6,000,000) Dollars to do all maintenance and repairs necessary 
to bring the Phoenix Center into conformance with the requirements of the International Property 
Maintenance Code (2015 edition), as referenced in the Michigan Building Code and the Michlgan 
Rehabilitation Code (2015 edition), within the ten (10) year period after the .Effective Date of this 
Agreement; provided, however, that: 

Within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the City shall repair vandalism damage 
previously reported by Plaintiffs; withln twenty-four (24) months of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, the City shall complete all necessary electrical, lighting, elevator and serious structural 
repairs to the Deck in the following stages: 

1) repairs to the third (3rd) floor of the north side of the Deck which is defined as that portion of the Deck 
located to the north of Orchard Lake Road ("North Side") - both electrical and structural and the 

repairs to both of the south side elevators; 
2) then all south side sections of the Deck, being that portion of the Deck located to the South of Orchard 

Lake Road ("South Side"); 
3) then return to repair the remaining portions of the North Side of the Deck. 

(B) Notwithstanding the 24-month schedule above, if Ottawa Towers II, LLC, or any subsequent owner, 
leases the Judson tower (or portion thereof), the City shall, within six (6) months of the date that City 
is served written notice of such lease execution ("Notice of Lease"), complete the following repairs to 
the Deck: 

1) all electrical and structural repairs on the south side of the Deck; 
2) two elevators on the south side of the Deck; 
3) make both electrical and structural repairs to have the 3n1 floor on the north side of the Deck ready 

for parking; 

(C) Commencing upon May 1, 2018, the City will reimburse Plaintiffs in advance on the first day of each 
month for the actual costs of providing electricity to the Deck and Tunnel ($4,374.00 per month) to 
continue until such time as the City can establish and assume the costs of providing electricity to the 
Deck and Tunnel; all payments to be paid electronically to an account designated by Plaintiffs on or 
before the first day of the month. The City shall immediately upon execution of this Agreement pay 
any past due invoices to Plaintiffs for the period after the signing of the Term Sheet until thls Agreement 
is signed. As soon as is feasible, the City will have the electrical power for the Deck and Tunnel placed 
on the City's account with the electric provider, pay any actual costs associated with doing so, and 
thereafter pay the electrical charges directly. 

(D) FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM: A portion of the fire suppression system for the Phoenix Center that 
services the secured parking area on the second floor of the Deck (near Tower I) is connected to fire 
pumping equipment located in the 31 Judson Tower. The City shall disconnect and relocate the fire 
suppression service pumping equipment from the 31 Judson Tower, and reconnect it to the City's own 
fire suppression pumping equipment. There are 175 parking spaces within this secured parking area on 
the second floor of the Deck; the City agrees to provide tOOSe-Wffle-175 parking spaces withln the Deck, 
free of charge to the owner of the 31 Judson Tower~. their tenants and employees, until such 
time as City completes the work to disconnect/reconnect the fire suppression system as above 
described. 

20 



EXHIBIT 4 -AMENDMENT TO DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS 

AMENDMENT TO DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS 

This Amendment to Declaration of Easements ("Amendment") is made as effective of the 
_ day of September t\HgHst, 2018, by the City of Pontiac, a municipal corporation of the State 
of Michigan, with offices at 450 E. Wide Track Drive, Pontiac, Michigan ("City"), and North Bay 
Drywall Inc, Profit Sharing Plan & Trust, a California Pension and Profit Sharing Trust, ("North 
Bay") and Ottawa Tower II, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company with offices at 51111 
Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan ("Ottawa"). 

Background 

WHEREAS, the City declared that certain Declaration of Easements on May 8, 1980 
("Declaration"), and said Declaration was recorded in the office of Oakland County Register of 
Deeds on May 19, 1980, in Liber 7788, page 01; and 

WHEREAS, North Bay is now the owner of the office building located at 51111 
Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan, and legally described in the Declaration and referred to 
therein as Parcel D; and 

WHEREAS, Ottawa is now the owner of the office building located at 31 E. Judson Street, 
Pontiac, Michigan, and legally described in the Declaration and referred to therein as Parcel E; and 

WHEREAS, The City is the owner of all Sites legally described in the Declaration other 
than Parcel D and Parcel E [and the grassy lot]; and 

WHEREAS, the City, North Bay, and Ottawa desire herein to amend the Declaration; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable 
consideration, the parties herein agree to amend the Declaration as herein provided: 

1. The following paragraph is added to the Declaration after Section 1 for the purpose of 
clarifying the rights of the parties in regards to parking in the Deck: 

Parking Easement in the Deck. The City hereby declares, grants conveys and reserves to 
and for the benefit of all Owners of the Parcels, and the tenants, subtenants and occupants 
thereof, and their respective agents, employees, customers and invitees, the right and 
easement to park passenger automobiles in the Deck located on Parcels Kand A-1, and for 
ingress and egress thereto and therefrom, including but not limited to ingress and egress 
through any connectors, foyers and vestibules located within or connected to the Deck, and 

21 



the right to drive passenger automobiles to and from the Deck and the parking spaces 
therein. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the City shall have the right to charge reasonable 
parking fees for the use of the Deck for parking. Further notwithstanding the forgoing, the 
Plaza located at the top level of the Deck is not for parking, except for temporary parking 
of service and maintenance vehicles, or specialty vehicles specifically participating in 
events taking place on the top Plaza level of the Deck. 

2. The first complete paragraph of Section 3 of the Declaration is hereby amended and 
restated in its entirety, as follows: 

3. Common Walls. As used herein, the term "Common Walls" shall mean any and 
all common walls between the (a) Deck or Plaza and (b) the Ottawa Towers 
office buildings. The Owners of the respective parcels abutting any Common 
Wall shall have the following rights and obligations with respect to said 
Common Wall: 

4. Section 8 of the Declaration is hereby amended and restated in its entirety, as follows: 

8. Maintenance. Each Owner shall cause the parking areas, driveways and 
sidewalks contained within its respective portion of the Project and any 
landscape areas contained therein to be continuously repaired and maintained, 
including cleaning, lighting, painting, landscaping, removal of debris, removal 
of snow and ice, making of repairs to the driveways and sidewalks, and other 
similar maintenance, each at their own expense. 

5. The Parties represent and warrant to each other that, with the exception of this Amendment, 
there are no prior amendments of the Declaration to their knowledge. 

6. Except as specifically amended herein, all of the terms and provisions of the Declaration 
are hereby ratified and affirmed. To the extent of any conflict between the Declaration and 
this Amendment, the terms and provisions of this Amendment shall govern and control, 
and any conflicting terms and provisions of the Declaration shall be deemed amended to 
the extent necessary not to conflict with the provisions hereof. 

7. Capitalized terms used herein shall have the same meaning as used in the Declaration, unless 
a different or contrary meaning is expressly provided in this Amendment. 

8. This Amendment shall be promptly recorded in the office of the Oakland County Register 
of Deeds by Ottawa. 

22 



Dated: ______ , 2018 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

CITY OF PONTIAC, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Michigan 

By: 
Dr. Deirdre Waterman 

Its: Mayor 

Acknowledged before me on ___ , 2018, by Dr. Deirdre Waterman, Mayor, for the 
City of Pontiac. 

[SEAL] 

Dated: -----~2018 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

, Notary Public 
_____ County, Michigan 
Acting in ____ County, Ml 
My Commission Expires: ___ _ 

NORTH BAY DRYWALL INC. PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN & TRUST, a California 
Pension and Profit Sharing Trust 

By: 
Charles Stephens 

Its: 

Acknowledged before me on---~ 2018, by Charles Stephens, Trustee of North Bay 
Drywall Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust. 

[SEAL] , Notary Public 
_____ County, Michigan 
Acting in ____ County, Ml 
My Commission Expires: ____ _ 



Dated: -----~ 2018 

STATE OF MlCIDGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTYOFOAKLAND ) 

OITA WA TOWER Il, LLC, a Michigan 
limited liability company 

By: 
Charles Stephens 

Its: 

Acknowledged before me on __ _, 2018, by Charles Stephens, Manager of Ottawa 
Tower II, LLC. 

[SEAL] 

Drafted by and when recorded, return to: 

Steven D. Sallen, Esq. 
Maddin Hauser Roth & Heller, PC 
28400 Northwestern Highway, 2nd Floor 
Southfield, l\1ichigan 48034 
248-827-1861 

, Notary Public 
_____ County, Michigan 
Acting in ____ County, Ml 
My Commission Expires: ____ _ 



EXHIBIT 5 -PARKING AGREEMENT 

PARKING AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into effective as of September AllgtH,t __ , 2018 between the 
City of Pontiac ("City"), North Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust ("North Bay") and 
Ottawa Tower II, LLC ("OTII''). OTII and North Bay may also be referred to as "Plaintiffs," 

Recitals 

1. North Bay and OTII are the owners and operators of two office towers (each, a 
"Tower" and both, "Towers") that are located adjacent to the Phoenix Center Parking Deck & 
Plaza ("PC") which is owned by the City. 

2. The tenants, invitees and employees of North Bay and OTII utilize the PC for 
parking and ingress/egress to/from the PC and the Towers. 

3. A dispute previously arose between the City, on the one hand, and North Bay and 
OTII, on the other hand, relating to the PC. The City, North Bay and OTII entered into a Settlement 
Agreement and Release contemporaneously with this Agreement to resolve their dispute, which 
resolution includes execution of this Agreement. 

4. As part of the settlement, the City, North Bay and OTII entered into an Amendment 
to Declaration of Easements ("Easement") regarding the use of the PC and related matters as set 
forth in the Easement. 

5. The parties have agreed to the specific terms set forth in this Agreement relating to 
the parking rights of North Bay and OTII, in furtherance of the Settlement Agreement and Release 
and the Easement. 

Wherefore, the City, North Bay and OTII agree as follows: 

(A) North Bay and OTII shall be entitled to park in the PC at no charge for ten (10) years for 
the vehicles of all of their employees and their Tenants' employees beginning on the 
Effective Date of this Agreement. North Bay and OTII may renew this Agreement relating 
to parking for successive ten-year periods: (a) the maximum parking charge for years 11-
20 shall be $20 per car, per month, provided however that, (b) the maximum parking charge 
for years 21-30 shall increase to market rates, but in no event more that 100% higher that 
the preceding period, and ( c) the maximum parking charge for any following 10 year period 
after year 30 shall be indexed according to the Consumer Price Index (Midwest). This 



parking agreement shall be freely assignable, in whole or in part, to any purchaser(s) of 
either or both of the Towers and binding on the City. 

(B) The City shall install a card-reader system (or the equivalent) and issue cards to Plaintiffs 
for the vehicles of North Bay, OTII, their tenants and employees which cards will be at no 
cost to-North Bay, OTII, and all of their tenants and their employees of both Towers. 
Parking cards shall be issued to Plaintiffs immediately upon their request, with __ cards 
(note: this number should be equal to the reserved parking areas) being issued to Plaintiffs 
upon execution of this Agreement or as soon as such cards become required by the City. 
Upon leasing of the Judson Tower, the City shall immediately provide Plaintiffs with 
___ cards (Note: this number should be equal to the Judson area reserved parking). If 
Plaintiffs or any subsequent owners of Plaintiffs' buildings require any replacement cards 
in excess of ___ , then a charge of $10 per replacement card shall apply. 

(C) The public and visitors shall be charged market rates for use of the Deck by the City; 
provided however, that the State of Michigan, as Tenant, shall be allowed to validate the 
parking tickets of its invitees and such invitees upon presenting the validated ticket shall 
not be charged for parking. 

(D) A reserved parking area is hereby established, for the duration of this Agreement, on the 
entire south portion of the Deck (being that portion of the Deck located to the south of 
Orchard Lake Road) and the entire north side (being that portion of the Deck located to the 
north of Orchard Lake Road) of the ·third f19or of the :beck and to be identified as parking 
solely for Plain.tiffs (and successors and assigns), and their tenants and employees (wording 
and restrictions to be determined by both Plaintiffs or any successor owner(s) of- the 
Towers). The other parking areas of the Deck shall be available and useable by Plaintiffs, 
their tenant~ and employees on a first come, first served basis. The City acknowledges that 
Plaintiffs may designate with.m the forgoing reserved parking area certain parking spaces 
for executive use, provided that the City shall liave no obligation to enforce such executive 
use spaces. 

(E) The parking cards permitting free access are not assignable or transferrable by vehicle 
owner to any party other than Plaintiff or Plaintiffs' tenants and their employees. 

(F) The parking card is the property of the City, and no property rights are transferred or 
intended to transfer to the parking card user by issuance or delivery of the parking card. 

(G) Plaintiffs agree not to resell or otherwise charge employees, visitors, or the public for the 
parking cards it receives under this Agreement. This provision does not apply to any 
provision in the lease(s) that Plaintiffs may sign with their tenants relating to any charges 
or rental rate(s). 

(H) This Agreement is intended to be complimentary to the Settlement Agreement and Release 
and Easement and, in the event of any conflict between this Agreement and those 
documents, those documents shall control. This Agreement may be recorded with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds. 



(I) This Agreement cannot be modified without the signed written consent of the Mayor of the 
City and either Charles Stephens or his designee identified in writing as having his 
authority, or future owners of the Towers. 

(J) This Agreement may be freely assigned and transferred by Plaintiffs, in whole or in part, 
to any future owners of either of the Towers. 

Dated: ______ , 2018 CITY OF PONTIAC, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Michigan 

By: 
Dr. Deirdre Waterman 

Its: Mayor 



STATE OF MJCHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

Acknowledged before me on ___ , 2018, by Dr. Deirdre Waterman, Mayor, for the 
City of Pontiac. 

[SEAL] 

Dated: -----~ 2018 

STATE OF MJCHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

, Notary Public 
_____ County, Michigan 
Acting in ____ County, M1 
My Commission Expires: ____ _ 

NORTH BAY DRYWALL INC. PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN & TRUST, a California 
Pension and Profit Sharing Trust 

By: 
Charles Stephens 

Its: 

Acknowledged before me on ___ ...., 2018, by Charles Stephens, Trustee of North Bay 
Drywall Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust. 

[SEAL] 

Dated: -----~ 2018 

, Notary Public 
_____ County, Michigan 
Acting in ____ County, MI 
My Commission Expires: ____ _ 

OTT AW A TOWER II, LLC, a Michigan 
limited liability company 

By: 
Charles Stephens 

Its: 



STATE OF1vlICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTYOFOAKLAND ) 

Acknowledged before me on---~ 2018, by Charles Stephens, Manager of Ottawa 
Tower II, LLC. 

[SEAL] 

Drafted by and when recorded, return to: 

Steven D. Sallen, Esq. 
Maddin Hauser Roth & Heller, PC 
28400 Northwestern Highway, 2nd Floor 
Southfield, Michigan 48034 
248-827-1861 

, Notary Public 
_____ County, Michigan 
Acting in ____ County, MI 
My Commission Expires: ____ _ 



EXHIBIT 6 - CITY'S MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE 

The City's Day-to-Day Management of the Phoenix Center includes without limitation, the 
following activities: 

(A) Deck and Tunnel Maintenance: 

1) Lighting and lightbulbs. 
2) Painting of lines for parking spaces. 
3) Sweeping and trash removal. 
4) Snow and Ice Removal (including salting). 

(B) Plaza Maintenance: 

5) Landscaping. 
6) Trash removal. 

7) Snow and ice removal (including salting) as necessary to keep drains clear. 

(C) Security. For avoidance of doubt. during the period described in Section 8.0 of the Settlement 
Agreement. wherein Plaintiffs shall continue their services at the Phoenix Center. Plaintiff's 
obligations for security shall be limited to them south section of the Deck, from 7:00 am to 
7:00 pm, Monday through Fridays, excluding holidays. Any additional security services 
requested by the City will cost extra. 

(D) Snow and ice removal on short section of Saginaw Street north of Judson street, to the south 
entrance of the Deck, only. 



EXHIBIT? 
QUITCLAIM DEED FOR ATRIUM CONNECTOR - JUDSON TOWER 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

Grantor: The City of Pontiac, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with an address of 47450 
Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342, quitclaims to: 

Grantee: Ottawa Tower II, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, whose address is 715 
Southpoint Boulevard, Suite B, Petaluma, California 94954, any and all of Grantor's right, title, 
and interest in, any of the real property and improvements located upon the following described 
premises situated in Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, to-wit: 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A" (the "Property") 

For the sum of: One and 00/100 ($1.00) Dollar. 

Dated: ______ , 2018 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

GRANTOR: 

CITY OF PONTIAC, 
a Michigan Municipal Corporation 

By: _________ _ 

Deirdre Waterman 
Its: Mayor 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me------~ 2018 by Deirdre 
Waterman, the Mayor of the City of Pontiac. 

Instrument Drafted by: 
Steven D. Sallen, Esq. 
Maddin Hauser Wartell Roth & Heller, PC 
28400 Northwestern Highway;3"' Floor 
Southfield, MI 48034 
(248) 827-1861 

When recorded, return to: Grantee 
Send subsequent tax bills to: Grantee 

Notary Public, _____ County, MI 
My Commission Expires: _____ _ 



EXHIBIT A - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

All real property and improvements, including but not limited to a two-story atrium and 
connector area adjacent to the office tower, located upon the following parcel with a common 
street address of 31 East Judson Street, Pontiac, Michigan, and as legally described as: 

Being all or parts of the following lots and parcels in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, 
Michigan, Lot numbers 1 through 8 and 14, 15 and that part of vacated Auburn Avenue 
of Assessor's Plat No. 130, as recorded in Liber 54A, Page 71, Oakland County Records, 
more particularly described as follows: Beginning at a point located Northerly 79.00 feet 
along the Easterly right of way line of Saginaw Street from the Northwest comer of Lot 
16 of said Assessor's Plat No. 130, said point of beginning also being a point on the North 
right of way line of New Judson Street; thence North 14 degrees 30 minutes 01 seconds 
West 144.67 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East 128.00 feet; thence 
North 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds West, 2.42 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 
minutes 55 seconds East 64,00 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East 
2.42 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East 124.91 feet; thence South 
14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East 181.79 feet to a point on the Northerly right of 
way line of Judson Street; thence along said Judson right of way line North 85 degrees 
36 minutes 10 seconds West 6.48 feet to the beginning of a curve; thence along a curve 
to the left 214.75 feet, said curve having a radius of 648.70 feet, delta of 18 degrees 58 
minutes 04 seconds, chord bearing and distance of South 84 degrees 54 minutes 44 
seconds West 213.77 feet; thence South 75 degrees 25 minutes 42 seconds West 100.00 
feet to point of beginning. 

Together with the right to the use of the following land in accordance with a License 
Agreement as granted by Pontiac City Commission meeting December 4, 1979, 
Resolution No. 738 to Downtown Pontiac Development Company, recorded in Liber 
7788, Page 142, as more clearly described, limited and defined as; A parcel ofland being 
part of the Saginaw Street right of way adjacent to Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Assessor's Plat 
No. 130, as recorded in Liber 54A, Page 71, Oakland County Records, more particularly 
described as follows: Beginning at a point located Northerly 79.00 feet along the Easterly 
right of way line of Saginaw Street from the Northwest corner of Lot No. 16 of Assessor's 
Plat No. 130, in the Northeast 1/4 of Section 32, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, 
Michigan, said point of beginning also being a point on the North right of way line of 
New Judson Street; thence North 14 degrees 30 minutes 01 seconds West 144.67 feet; 
thence South 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds West 15.09 feet to a point; thence South 
14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East 144.68 feet to a point; thence North.75 degrees 
25 minutes 42 seconds East 15.00 feet to the point of beginning. 

Commonly known as: 31 East Judson Street, Pontiac, Michigan 
Tax Parcel Identification No.: 14-32-227-002 





TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DATE: 

MEMORANDUM 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman, M.D., City of Pontiac 
John Clark, Esq., Giarmarco, Mullins & Horton, P.C. 

Samantha A. Kopacz 

Request for Documents 
City of Pontiac GERS Transition Plan 

February 20, 2019 

As discussed during our meeting on February 15, 2019, in order to complete the City of 
Pontiac's General Employees' Retirement System ("GERS") transition plan, Miller Canfield 
needs to review several documents, which include: 

GERS Plan Documentation 

• Current Version of GERS (Ord. 92) (a copy was provided by Ms. Munson on 1-7-19; 
please confirm that this version is current and complete) 

• Version of GERS that was approved by the IRS in its 1/30/14 Favorable Determination 
Letter ("2014 FDL") 

o Appears to have included the 2009 amended and restated document along with the 
following amendments: 

11 Amendment executed on 5-3-11 I 1-30-12 (as referenced in the 2014 FDL) 
11 Amendment dated 3-6-12 / 11-16-12 (as referenced in the 2014 FDL) 
11 Amendment dated 12-22-11 / 4-25-12 (as referenced in the 2014 FDL) 
11 Subject to the adoption of the proposed amendments dated 5-24-13 / 11-8-

13 (as referenced in the 2014 FDL) 
11 Amendment adopted on 4-16-13 (as referenced in the 2014 FDL) 

• Ordinances adopted related to GERS since the 1/30/14 Favorable Determination Letter 
o Ord. No. 2300 
o Ord. No. 2327 
o Ord. No. 2329, 7-23-15 
o Ord. No. 2337, §1, 7-21-16 
o Ord. No. 2346, §l(a), 8-1-17 
o Ord. No. 2349, §1, 12-21-17 
o Ord. No. 2356, §1, 8-9-18 
o Any other ordinances 
o [Comment: please confirm that these ordinances are already incorporated into the 

current version of GERS provided on 1-7-19. We would still like a copy of each 



of these ordinances so that we can determine exactly what changes to the GERS 
were made since the 2014 FDL.] 

• City resolutions adopting the GERS-related ordinances 
• Collective bargaining agreements addressing GERS benefits 

Retiree Health Plan Documentation 

• Any documentation setting forth the terms of the retiree health plan ( outside of the 
settlement agreement) 

• Current version of the Pontiac Police and Fire Retiree Pre-Funding Group Health 
Insurance Trust and associated retiree health plan document ("Police and Fire Trust") 

• Version of Police and Fire Trust approved most recently by the IRS 
• Ordinances / amendments adopted to the Police and Fire Trust since its last IRS approval 
• City resolutions related to the retiree health plan and Police and Fire Trust 
• Collective bargaining agreements related to the Police and Fire Trust 
• Exhibits to the settlement agreement 

Actuary / Investment Documentation 

• Most recent investment policy statement for GERS (we have the 11/29/17 version) 
• Most recent actuarial valuation report from GRS related to the GERS (we have 12/31/16 

version) 
• Most recent financial report for the GERS (we have the 12/31/17 version) 
• Most recent actuarial valuation report for the Police and Fire Trust 
• Most recent investment policy statement for Police and Fire Trust 
• Most recent financial report for Police and Fire Trust 
• Most recent actuarial valuation report related to the new retiree health plan (if any) 

IRS Documentation 
• 1/3 0/14 Favorable Determination Letter (1.ve already have a copy of this) 
• Most recent IRS approval documentation for the Police and Fire Trust 

City Protocol 
• Summary of what governance steps must be taken by the City in order to effectuate the 

GERS transition plan. This will include terminating the GERS, adopting a new defined 
benefit plan, adopting a new retiree health plan and trust, and merging the Police and Fire 
Trust into the new retiree health plan and trust. 

Other Documentation 
• City's current Code section 125 cafeteria plan document (and corresponding summary 

plan description), including any amendments since its last restatement, if any. 
• City's current defined contribution plan 

To date, we have determined that the aforementioned documents need to be reviewed in order to 
effectuate the GERS transition plan. Please provide us with copies of these documents as soon 
as possible. 
33030986.3\071371-00075 

-2-



DR. DEIRDRE WATERMAN 

MAYOR 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

Deborah Munson, Executive Director 
Pontiac GERS . 
2201 Auburn Road, Suite B 
Auburn Hills, MI 48326 

August 7, 2019 

RE: Request for GER~ Supplemental Actuarial Analysis 

Dear Ms. Munson: 

As you are aware, the City has retained Samantha A. Kopacz of the Miller Canfield law furn to assist in preparing 
documents related to the settlement of the litigation with the City of Pontiac Retired Employees Association 
("CPREA"). In that regard, Ms. Kopacz is requesting a supplemental actuarial analysis with the following 
assumptions: 

• 3.5% investment returns/funding assumption 
• Utilize the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables published by the Society of Actuaries 

While the suggested assumption updates are not required by the Internal Revenue Code or other applicable law, Miller 
Canfield believes that the updates will aid the City and its retirees in evaluating the extent of the GERS overfunding. 
As part of the updated actuarial analysis, please determine whether the rates of separation from active membership 
are still accurnte. If not, please provide information as to how the accurate rates of separation impact the funding 
bottom line. 
Please be advised that December 31, 2018 can be used as the date of the requested calculations. Additionally, please 
run the analysis under two assumptions: (I) the $400/month stipend ceases December 31, 2020; and (2) the 
$400/month stipend continues indefinitely. 
Your cooperation in obtaining this study is greatly appreciated. 

cc: GERS Board of Trustees 
John Clark, Giarmarco, Mullins & Horton, P.C. 
Samantha Kopacz, Miller Canfield 
Hughey Newsome, Interim Finance Director 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Dr. Deirdre Waterman 
Mayor 

47450 Woodward Avenue " Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Direct: (248) 758-3181 • Appointments: (248) 758-3326 • Fax: (248) 758-3292 

E-mail: DWaterman@pontiac.mi.us "www.pontiac.mi.us 
https: / /www.facebook.com/pontiacmayor / 





TO: 

CC: 

PONTIAC GENERAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Pontiac City Council 

Mayor Deirdre W atennan 
GERS Board of Trustees 

FROM: Deborah Munson, Executive Director 

DATE: August 6, 2019 

RE: GERS Proposed Ordinance Update RE: Actuarial Equivalence 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

In 2013, the Retirement System submitted its periodic application to the IRS for a favourable 
Letter of Determination. The IRS issued a favourable Letter contingent on adoption of several 
amendments (Exhibit A) to the Retirement System Ordinance which the City Council adopted in 
May 2014. 

One of those required amendments was an update to the Retirement System Ordinance's 
definition of 'Actuarial Equivalent' such that the definition now includes the specific interest 
rate and mortality table which are used to determine the present value of the various forms of 
benefit payments. 

Ordinance Sec. 92-2 Definitions: 

. Actuarial equivalent means the equivalence in the present value of various forms of 
payment. Present value will be determined by the retirement system's actuary based 
upon the mortality tables and interest rates established from time to time by the Board. 
For purposes of determining the actuarial equivalence of benefits, the actuary for 
the Retirement System shall use 6.50% interest rate and the 1971 Group Annuity 
Mortality Table - Male - Set Forward O Years for retirees and the 1971 Group Annuity 
Mortality Table - Female - Set Forward O years for beneficiaries. The unisex mix shall be 
0.0% Male and 100.0% Female. (2014 Amendment Language Added) 

The Retirement System Ordinance Sec. 92-10 provides that "The Board shall adopt such 
mortality and other tables of experience as are necessary in the operation of the retirement 
system on an actuarial basis." 

The Board periodically reviews the tables and rates used for actuarial purposes and - in 2017 -
adopted an updated mortality table and interest rate. Specifically, present value 1s now 
determined using a 7% interest rate and the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table. 

An ordinance has not been adopted by the City Council so that the Retirement System 
Ordinance's Definition of Actuarial Equivalent reflects the current interest rate and mortality 
table used to determine present value. 



REQUESTED ACTION: 

Request that the City Council adopt the attached proposed 'Ordinance to revise the Sec. 92-2 
definition of Actuarial Equivalent to reflect the current interest rate and mortality table used to 
determine present value. 

BACKGROUND: 

The IRS issued the Retirement System a favorable Letter of Determination in 2014; however, it 
was contingent on the City Council adopting several amendments to the Retirement System 
Ordinance. The City Council adopted those amendments at their May 1, 2014 meeting (Ex. B). 
It was discovered this year that the amendments had not yet been codified. 

The Board periodically reviews the tables and rates used for actuarial purposes. The Board relies 
on the advice of its' investment consultant and actuary to determine those tables and rates and 
the System's auditor annually reviews these assumptions for reasonableness. 

The Retirement System's Advisor and Review Policy requires that the Board annually select one 
of its eight major services providers for review. In 2016, the actuary was selected, an RFP was 
issued and Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company was hired as the System's actuary. As part of the 
transition to the new actuary, the Board directed that an actuarial audit be conducted and the 
results of that audit were presented to the Board on February 22, 2017. Pursuant to the 
responsibilities delegated to it by the Ordinance, the Board - at the March 29, 2017 meeting -
adopted the actuary's recommendation to use an investment (interest) rate of return of7% and 
the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table to determine the present value of the various 
forms of payment. 

The Retirement System Ordinance Sec. 92-25 reads, in part: 

( a) Prior to the effective date of the member's retirement. .. a member may elect to 
receive his/her retirement allowance as a regular retirement allowance payable 
throughout his/her life; or he/she may elect to receive the actuarial equivalent ... of 
his/her regular retirement allowance in a reduced retirement allowance payable 
throughout his/her life, and nominate a beneficiary, in accordance with the provisions of 
Option 1, 2, 3, 4, or 5 ... 

The various forms of payment (Options 1 - 5) allow the member to opt to receive a reduced 
benefit amount in order to provide a benefit for their beneficiary. The interest/investment rate 
and mortality table are used in determining what (reduced) benefit amounts should be paid to the 
member and their beneficiary so that the present value of the total of those payments is 
equivalent to the present value of the total (unreduced) of the payments that would have been 
paid to just the member if he had selected the Regular benefit. In May 2017, the System's 
member data software - which calculates these various forms of payment - was updated to 
incorporate the adopted interest rate and mortality table for use in determining the present value 
of the various forms of payment. 

The City Council has not previously been notified of the Board's adoption of the updated interest 
rate and mortality table. Having consulted with the System's attorney, the Board approved at 
their July 31, 2019 meeting to forward to the City Council the attached ordinance and 
recommendation for adoption. 

2 



EXAMPLE: 

A sample member benefit calculation is attached (Ex. C). The interest rate and mortality table 
are used to determine the present value of each optional form of payment to ensure actuarial 
equivalence. What this means is that the present value of all of the payments that would be made 
if the member selects the Regular Option must be equal to the present value of all of the 
payments that would be made if the member selects either Option I, II, III or IV or V. The 
following is an oversimplified example. 

A member's Regular (unreduced) retirement benefit is calculated as follows: 

Final Average Compensation * Years of Service * Multiplier ( determined by union) 

Regular Option: Member Selects Regular (unreduced) Benefit: The benefit ends upon the death 
of the member: 

Based on the formula above, his annual retirement benefit is $10,000.00 
($833.33/month). According to the mortality table, he is expected to live for 20 years so 
he will be paid a total of $200,000. If the System earns a 7% rate of return, we only need 
to invest $114,000 today (present value) in order to have enough assets to make all of 
those future payments. 

OR 

Option II: Member selects Joint & 100% Survivor (reduced). Upon the death of the member, the 
beneficiary will receive a lifetime pension equal to the amount of the member's: 

The member is still expected to live 20 years but has a younger beneficiary whose life 
expectancy is 5 years longer. Actuarial equivalence requires that the present value of 
total payments to be paid to the member and the beneficiary under Option II equal the 
present value of the payments that would have been paid to just the member under the 
Regular Option - $114,000. Since there are more expected payments, the payment 
amount must be lower (reduced): The annual retirement benefit is $8,880 
($740.00/month) payable to the member and the same amount to the beneficiary upon his 
death. 

Options III, IV and V simply offer the member other reduced forms of payment which have 
slightly different benefits for the member and the beneficiary. The benefits payable under any 
and all of these options must meet the actuarial equivalence standard. 

To summarize, a retirement benefit can be thought of as a lump sum amount. The member above 
has earned a benefit that in today's dollars (present value) is worth $114,000. The various forms 
of payment merely give the member the option of receiving that benefit over his lifetime or 
sharing it with a beneficiary over both of their lifetimes. Actuarial equivalence ensures that 
whether the member shares the payments using Option I, II, III, IV or V, the present value of 
those payments is still $114,000. The Board employs the services of professional advisors to 
ensure that the tables and rates used to determine present value are appropriate to sustain sound 
fiscal management of the Retirement System. 

3 



ORDINANCE NO. ____ _ 

An ordinance to amend the Municipal Code of the City of Pontiac by amending 

Chapter 92, General Employees' Retirement System, Section 92-2 to update interest 

rate and mortality table used to determine actuarial equivalence. 

The City of Pontiac ordains: 

Section 1. Amendments. 
The General Employee's Retirement System Ordinance Section 92-2 shall be amended 
so that the definition of "Actuarial Equivalent" shall read: 

Actuarial equivalent means the equivalence in the present value of various forms 
of payment. Present value will be determined by the Retirement System's 
actuary based upon the mortality tables and interest rates established from time 
to time by the Board. For purposes of determining the actuarial equivalence of 
benefits, the actuary for the Retirement System shall use 6.50% 7.00% interest 
rate and the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table Male Set Fon.vard O Years 
RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected to 2021 using the 2-
dimensional MP-2014 improvement scale Set Forward O Years for retirees a-AG 
the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table Female Set Fon.vard O years 
and for beneficiaries. The unisex mix shall be M% 50% Male and 50% Female. 

Section 2. Severability 
If any section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared to be 
unconstitutional, void, illegal, or ineffective by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such 
section, clause, or provision declared to be unconstitutional, void, or illegal shall thereby 
cease to be a part of this Ordinance, but the remainder of this Ordinance shall stand 
and be in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Repealer. 
All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to 
the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 4. Publication 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation. 

Section 5. Effective Date 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

Page 1 of 1 



!N't.l!!RNAL REVBNOE SERVICE 
P. •, :Boll: 25013 
CINC~Tt, OR 45201 

Date: 

Cr.t'Y OF l.'ONT'.J'.A,C 

~ployer Identificatioulrumberi 
38~$005034 

:OW; 
1700'7149051023 

c/o SUIJ.,l'\QU{ t WARD1 MHRR M 
CYNTHIA J BILLINGS 

PATTO:tl PCPerson to Contact: 

25800 .NORTfil~S'l'Efilf :IDn: STE 1000 
SOUTH PlBLD, MI 4$075 

· Dear Applicant: 

lUJ'l'M C~ 
contact Telephone Nmnheri 

(6M) S.27-14:t:1 
Plan Name: 

ClTY O'Ii' FON'l':Il\C GElIBRl'lii EMPLOYEES 
RE'!'IR~ $¥STEM 

'.Plan Numbe:t: ()03 

we have rnade a favprahlo 'dete21lrlXlation ou'the plan identified above based 
on the information you have supplied, Please keep th.ls letter, the appl.tcation 
:corms submitted. to request this lette1.• and all co:rreapoudence with the ::ru,ternal 
neve.nue Berv~ce rega:i:ding your application for a dete:nnination latte~ in your 
pe,:-mru:1eiit :records. You ln11$t retain thia informatiot\ to preserve yolll;' relian<:!e 
on this letter. 

Continued qualification of the plan under its present foxm wlll depend 
on lts effect in opexa:tio~. See section 1.~01~1(b){3} of the Xncome ~ax 
R.egu'.l.atious. We will revlew the status of the pla.n in operation pe:cJ.od.ically. 

The enclosed l>ublication 794 explaiml the significance and the scope of 
this favorable detemination letter based on the determination ~eg_u.ests 
selected on your .ipplfoation fom,g. Publication 79~ ,deacdbos the in:fo.rmation 
that must he :retail:l.e<l to have :reJ.:l.@ce on thitt £avo:rable det~xmination letter, · 
The publication also provides e~anwles o! the effeot o~ aplan1s operation on 
its qualified status and discusse/3 the reporting '.rc';!qtti.rements for qi.1aHi:ied 
plans. Plea$e read ~uhlication 794, 

'l'bis letter relates only to the status of your plan tmder the Internal 
Rev<::nue Code. It is not a dete:rnrl.na.tion x:egaxding tho effect of other federal 
or laaal i;itatutes. · 

~.t"rrd:nati-on-iette:i; g±ves no rel.f:~or-anrqu.rli:f±cat±tlll7:h'~-----~-·
tha t ~eaomes effective, any guidance published1 or any statuteG enacted, afte~ 
the issitance of the Cumu1ativo List tunleaa the item has been identified in the 
cumulative List) for the: cycle unde:r.• which this application was s,1bmitted, 

Thi$ detexmination, letter i~ applicable fo~ the amendment(s) exe¢1tted 
on S-3~11/1·30~12. 

This determination letter 1a also applicable for the runendment (s) dated 
on 3~6-lZ/11-lu-12. 

This detemination letter is also applicable for the runend!uent(s} dated on 

A 

{ 

r 
t 

r 

i 
<. 
,; 

I 
l 

l· 
L ,~ 
r 



l2-22-11/4-2$-13, 

~hii,j date:i:.w.naUon ~'!. _.subject to 7ottr ado:pt.hm o:f the p~oae_gjyn~ts _ 
1:.>'tl.bmitted in yow: letter dated Srl24-.1.3 11-a~n. '.!.'he pxoposed aruendllienta 
should be adopted on or before the date prescribed by the regulatioll.$ wd~r 
Code section 401(b). 

T.l:rla letter miperaedes our letter dated on or about 11"11,1:;. 

Thia detentlnat:!.on letter is based solely ox:i you.:c asll:ertion that the plan 
is entitled to he ti:eated as a Goveniml$llta2 plan m1de:r section 114 {d} of the 
Iutemal Revenue Code, · 

~his letter may not be relie~ on afte~ the end of the plan'$ fir~t 
five--year. retnedial amendment ,cyd~ that e!ld{l more than 12 rno.n~hfJ after· l::}ie 
application was .received. tt'hla letter expires on urinuary 3J., ~019. ':this letter 
considered the 2012 cumulative List of Changes in Plan Qualification 
Reguirement.s. 

'rlliB :is not a determination with respect: to an:t .langiiage in the plan or 
(U:ly amendment to the plan that J;efJ.ecta Section 3 of the '.Defense of t-tar:r:iage . 
Act, l?\ili, L. 104-199, 110 Btat. 2419 (DOMA} or r:,.s. v. ttindsor 1 133 a. Ct;. 25'15 
(20l3), which inv-alidateq th&t section. 

The infoxmat:ion on the enclosed addend.um is an integral »art of 
this cleterminatiop, I>leaee be sure to read and. keep it with thla letter, 

We have sent a copy of this letter to your repxesental:1ve as indicated . .i.n 
th.e Form :mu Power of Attorney or appointee as indicm.ted by the Fo:rm 88ll :l.'a"X 
!nformation Authoxization. 

If you have questions concerning this :matter, please contact the person. 
wh.oae name and telephone nti.rnhet' ~xe .!!ihown abov~. 

Ettclosures: 
l?ublicat:.;.ot1 794 
Addendum 

Sinoorely, 

Andt:ew E. zuckex:man 
'.Di:recto1·, BP Rulings & 11.greeme.nts 

G) 

1: r 



PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE 
CITY OF PONTIAC GENERAL EMl'LOYEES' RETIRE!vIENT SYSTEM 

I, Section 42.l(c)(l) is hereby amended and restated in its enfuety as follows: 
\ 

1. Des1gnated beneficiary. The mdividual who is designated as the be.J1eii.ciai:y under 
section of iho plan aud is the designated br,neficfaty under sectlon 401(a)(9) of the 
Internal Revenue Code · and section 1A01(a)(9)"i~ of the Treasmy 
regulations. 

lL Section 13 shall be amended by adding ihe folfo\ving provision thereto; for compliance 
with the Heroes Earning Assistance and Relief Tru:.Act of 2008 (HEART Act): 

An individual receiving a differential wag~ payment is treated as ~ empl6yee of the 
employer making the payment, and :6.irther, il1e differential wage pujment.slutll be 

· treated as oo.mpcnsation for purposes ofIRC section 415, 

m. Section 42(b) shall be amended by adding the followio.gp.rovision. thereto: 

Compensation for pmposcs of lRC §415( c )(3) s4all also include} (1) regular pay after 
severance from employment; (2) leave cashouts im.d deferred CQmpensmion. including 
cash out of accrued sick, vacation or other leave time if the employee would have 
been able to use 1he leave if employment had continued or the payment of 
nonqualified deferred compensation ili~t would have been paid to the e.mployee at ihe 
same time if l'IJ.o employee had remained employed and only to the e>..ient that the 
payment is inoludablc in the employee's gross income, The compensation items listed 
iu this paragraph must be paid by the later of two at1d one-half-months o-f sevei:ance 
from employment or ihe e11d of the limitation year ihat includes the date of sevc:tance 
·with the city. • 

IV. Section Z.2 shall be amended by adding the following provision thereto: 

WB7491'/ 

' ' 

For pu:rpose!l of determining tl1e aotunrial equivalem;e of benefits, the actuary fot· the 
Retirement System sball use 6.50% interest rate and the 1971 Group Annuity 
Mortality Table - Male - Set Fonvm:d O Yeats for ,:etirees and the 1971 tGroup 
Annuity Mortality Table- Female - Set Fonvard 0 years for beneficiaries. The unisex 
mix shall oo 0,0¾ Male and 100.0% Female 

\ 

·c·· y 

·' 

' 



May 1, 2014 

14-167 Defer up to two weela the report received from the City Administrafoi' 
concerniug the DTE streetlight master agreement. Moved by Councilperson Williams and 
supported by Councilperson l">ietila. 

Ayes: Cruicr, Holland, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No:None 
Defet1·ed for up to two weeks. 

14-168 Resolution for consicteration of GERS Ordinance AmendmenMRS. 
Compliance, Moved by Councilperson Woodwatd and supported by Councilperson Tay1or
Burks. 

Whereas, on AprH 3, 2014, tho City of Pontiac received a request from the GERS board to 
amend the Code ofOrdinai.1ces concerning provisions required by the IRS to main:taiu a tax 
exempt status; and 
Whereas, the City Clerk has distributed a copy of the J)rnposed ordinance to each Council 
member and 1o the Mayor, filed a reasonable number of copies in the office of the City Clerk, 
and published a summary of the proposed ordinance in the Oakland Legal News together with a 
notice o:f the time and place for consideration by the Council; 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pon1iac City Cmmcil adopts: 
An ordinance to amend Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances to add language to comply with 
J.RS requirements. 

Ayes: Holland, Pietila, TaylorMBurks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: Carter 
Resolution Adopted. 

14-169 Resolution for consideration of GERS Ordinance Amendment~420 Transfer. 
Moved by Councilperson Williams and supported by Councilperson HoHand. 

Wfo~rcas, on April 3, 2014, the City of Pontiac received a reqnest from the GERS board to 
amend the Code of Ordinances concerning provisions required by the IRS to maintain a tax 
exempt statns; and 
Whereas, the City Clerk has distributed a copy of the proposed ordinance to each Council 
member and to the Mayor, filed a reasonable number of copies in the office of the City Clerk, 
and published a suttunary of the proposed ordinance in the Oaklatld LegaJ News together with. a 
notice of the iime and place for consideration by the Council; 
Now, Therefore; Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac Cily Council adopts: 
An ordinance to amend Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances to add language to authorize a 
Section 420 transfer. 



Ordinance No. xxxx 

An ordinance to amend Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances to add language ·to 
, .comply with IRS requirements. 

The City of Pon!lac ordains: 

Section ·1. Amendments: 

A. The definition of "Actuarial Equivalent" in Section 92-2 of the Code of Ordinances shall 

be amended to read as follows: 

Actuarial equivalent means the equ[valence ln the present value of various forms cf payment 
Prnsenl value wm be determined by the retirement system's actuary based upon the mortality 
tables and interest rates established frnm time to time by the Board. for purposes of 
determining the' actuarial equivalence of benefits, lhe actuary for the Retirement System shall 
use 6,50% Interest rate and the 1971 Group Annutty Mortality Tabla - Male- Set F9rward 0 
Years for retirees and the 1971 Group Annuity'Mortaiity Table - Female - Set Forward 0 
years for benef!claries. The unisex mix shal! be 0.(}% Male, and 100.0% Female · 

E. Secikm 92-14 of the Code of Ordinances shalt be amended to read as follows: 

.~g:14 Active mUitary service, 
In the event any person, who, whlle employed by the City, was called lo or entered any armed 
service of thli! United Slates, or any member who ls called to or enters any armed service of the 
Un!tBd States, and who has been or shall be on aotlve duty in such armed servlce during time of 
war or other national emergency, and is re-employed by the City Within 90 days from th-a date of 
termlnatlon of required armed service, then such armed service shall be credited as City service 
iri the ·same manner as if the indlvklual had served the Clly uninterruptedly; provided, that !he 
member returns io the annuity savings fund all amounts withdrawn therefrom at the tlme the 
member entered, or while ln such armed service, together with regular interest thereon from the 
dale of withdrawal to the dale of repaymenL In any case of doubt as to !he period to be so , 
crediled any member, the Board shall have final power io determine such period. During the 
period of such armed service rendered to the Federal government and until !he individual'~ re
employment by !he City, the member's contributions lo the annuity savings fund shal! be 
suspended and !he balance standing to the member's credlt in the said fund shall be 
accumulated at regular interest. Notwithstanding any provision of the plan to the contrary, 
contrlbuUons, benefits and service credit with respect to qualified mllltmy service wm be provided 
In accordance with IRC scctlon 414(U) and regulatlons, · 

, Effective January 1, 2007, the beneflclary of a mef)1ber on a leave of absence to perform military 
servlre with reemployment rights described ln IRC section 414(u) where the member cannot 
return to emp!o>ment on account of his or her death shaU be entitled to any additional beneflts 
(oth~r than benefit accruals relating to the period of qualified mllltary service) that would be 
provided under, !he plan had the member died as an actiye employee, in accordance wlth lRC 
seclion 401(a)37. 

GERS IRS requirements 2014, Page 1 of 3 



Name: 

Date ofBii1h: 

Date of Hirth: 

Date of Hi re; 

City of Pontiac Employees Retirement System 
Final Retirement Benefit Cnlcufation 

l'vfemher Data: 

7/2Ul959 Age at E!foctivc Date: 59 Years 11 Months 

Beuefidary Datm 

Social Security No.: XXX-XX-

5113/1%4 Age at !fffoctivc Dale: 55 Ycurs I Month Sex: Female 

Retirement Data: 

Date of'l\irmiimlion: 
12112/1984 
6/30/2019 
7/112-019 
1803 

Fi1111I Avcragc (X,mpem;ation. $ 25,000,00 
Dale ofRclir(,,'T!i<!llt: 
Retlrcmcnt Nmi1bcr: 

Benefit Urnup; 
Retirement Type: 
Option E!cctd: 

Commrnls: 

Age & Service 
0(3tion II 

Credited Service: 20 Years O Mmlths 
EligibiHty Service: 20 Years O Months 

Alier Tax Coniribulions: $ 0.00 
Total Contdhutln:t't $ 35,9t'i6, 78 

lkm:;fl! Funnula: 

Computed Montltly Benefit Amounts: 

2.00'¼, * 2!10000 yrs. * $25,000.00 

Factor ,Hember Poltmfittl lt1 lJeuef 

Regulat N/A $83333 NIA 

Option I 0.0069 l $825.06 NIA 

Option ll 0.88800 $'740.00 $740,(){l 

Option m 0.94068 $783.90 $J9L95 

Option IV 0.87943 $732.86 $732,86 

Option V 0.93585 $779.87 $389.94 

h·, 
lmpurnml Note: This calculniinn ls pmvid,id only as a pninl•in•limc ustimaic nnd is not a gm1rnn!i:c nfyour m:lual benefit. This calculation niay 
coi1tai11 crrms and is subject lo correction even if utilized in a fom1al benefit d1Jlcm1in11tkm. Y<m nl\iY 110, rely on !hls cnku!atlon 1w (lti (1<:<:ur(1tc 
,tatcrmmt ofynm benefit The accuracy nrthis cnkulation is bm,cd on !Im underlying dala ,Hid assumptions that were prnvfded lo us 11ml utilized t<! 
genenue this estimn!e, \Ve reserve the righ1 to alter this cak:ula!.ion nl any time, induding ulkr the p11yment of a hcoclit. The Plan ahu reserves the 
right to recover nny payments tmide to you in crrnr. If yon become awan: of ally errors in thi$ calculation, please cmllacl a 1}1an representative. 





THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS 

ORDINANCE NO. 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND 
COUNTY, MICHIGAN BY ADDRESSING TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FENCING 
REGULATIONS. 

Article 4 General Provisions, Chapter 1 Accessory Structures and Fences. Section 4.103 Fences or Walls of 
the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance shall be stated as follows. 

E. Temporary Construction Fencing. Temporary fencing shall be installed on all residential and non
residential construction sites to ensure security, public safety and mitigate noise and/or dust in 
accordance with the following: 

1. General Provisions 
a. Temporary Construction Fencing shall be installed at the start of any site grading, 

excavation or building construction, renovation or demolition and be maintained and 
shall be removed before a certificate of occupancy from the Building & Safety 
Department. 

b. All construction fencing shall be constructed in a sound and sturdy manner and shall 
be maintained in a good state of repair, including the replacement of defective parts, 
and other acts required for maintenance. 

c. Temporary Construction Fencing shall not be permanently attached to the ground or 
attached to any other structure or material that is itself permanently attached to the 
ground. 

d. All Temporary Construction Fencing to be secured with metal posts spaced eight foot 
on-center. 

e. Temporary Construction fencing to be erected in an the public right-of-way or drive 
way clear vision area shall be subject to the approval of DPW Director, City Engineer 
or designee. 

f. Temporary Construction fencing shall not enclose a fire hydrant. 

2. Non-Residential Construction Sites 
a. Permitted Materials: 

i. Six foot chain link fence with fabric and/or vinyl screen is permitted. 

ii. Temporary Construction fencing shall be installed on all property lines of the 
construction site property/parcel with the approval of the Building Official or 
designee. 

iii. Access opening{s) in the Temporary Construction fencing shall be protected 

by gates with Chain Link fence. 

iv. Screening made of fabric and/or vinyl must be attached to chain link on the 
outside of the Temporary Construction fence. 

v. Prohibited Materials 
1. Plywood, metal sheets, or similar materials are not permitted. 



3. Residential Construction Sites 
a. Permitted Materials: 

i. Four foot snow fencing is permitted. 
ii. Temporary Construction Fencing at a residential construction site shall be 

limited to the area of construction, renovation and/or demolition area on the 
site. If the area exceeds 60 percent of the total parcel/property area, 
Temporary Construction Fencing shall be located on all property lines of the 
construction site parcel/property . 

. iii. Prohibited Materials 
1. Plywood, metal sheets, or similar materials are not permitted. 

4. Temporary Construction Fencing Signs 
a. A temporary construction sign shall be installed in conformance to the Zoning 

Ordinance and Section 5.106 Temporary Signs. The provisions of this section shall 
precede over conflict subsequent sections. 

b. Emergency access signs, access and safety signs, and visitor check-in signs may be 
attached to the fencing only on both sides of an entrance for a distance of ten feet, or 
at locations required by the Building Official or designee. 

c. Location of traffic control signs attached to Temporary Construction fencing shall be 
subject to the approval of DPW Director, City Engineer or designee. 

Article 6 Administration, Chapter 2 Site Plan Review. Section 6.208 Required Information Table 17 of the City 
of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance shall be stated as follows. 

LANDSCAPING and SCREENING 
•--<• •- ,..,_ , ,~ • -•- ____ ,_, __ , ••~< n••- ,~ ,••~ u•- ••- ,<•-

Landscapo plan, lndudlng location, size, quantity and type of proposed shrubs, tre<:!s, ground cov<:!r (including grass} and 
other live plant materials, and the location, size and type of any existing plant materials that wm be preserved. All 

_ landscape plan5~!_1al!_~e~i2i1ed_ a_nd sea le~ bya re9isterl'l_d la~ds~_ape;.irchitect .. _ .... 
Pkinting list for proposed kindscape matedals with quantity, caliper-Size and height of material, botanical and common 
narnes,;indstandardsofinstal!ation. . .... _, ... _ ___ _ ··--·- ____ _ 
Location, dimensions, construction materials, cross-section and slope ratio for any required or proposed berrns or 

_ greenbelts. ___ --·-· _______ -···· _ _ ___ ·---- _ .. 
. Proposedfoncesandwa!!s, indudingtypka! rn:iss-section, materi_als and 

_ Complete irrigation_ 
A basic annual landscape maintenance program. 

Include drawing details, dimensions, proposed locations, and materials for all Temporary Construction 
Fencing. Temporary Construction Fencing required as determined necessary by the Planning & Zoning 
Administrator. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• • 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
John V. Balint, City Engineer 

September 5, 2019 

Easement to DTE at 68 Oakland Avenue 

DTE Energy has requested that the City grant an easement on a parcel owned by the City 
located at 68 Oakland Avenue in the North end of the Downtown. The request from DTE is 
for the installation of a vault as part of their electoral revitalization in the Downtown. As part 
of this program, DTE is installing new equipment in all of their downtown facilities as well 
as installing some new. The property located at 98 Oakland is a vacant parcel the City has 
owned since prior to 1994. 

The Engineering Division has the reviewed and approved the attached documents prepared 
by WRC and does not see any concern with the granting of this easement. In addition, 
these easement documents have been reviewed and approved by the City's consulting 
engineer and by the City's attorney. 

It is the recommendation of the Department of Public Works, Engineering Division that the 
attached easement be signed by the City. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

JVB 

attachments 

The City of Pontiac has reviewed the documents provided by DTE, 
and; 

The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division finds that 
there are no concerns with the City granting the requested 
easement, and; 

The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor or Deputy Mayor 
to sign the subject easement. 



68 OAKLAND AVE PONTIAC Ml 48342-2043 
beds / fu ll baths I half baths I sq fl 

Residential Property Profile 

14-29-25 8--004 

Note: Pl•••• be adv ised the data include.d in Property G.lte.,ay origin•tes from multiple local municipalities. Oat.. in regard 
to properties, may be classififll and updatfl! dilfe,..ntly by municipalities. If you ~ve any questions, pie~ contact the 

Owner(s) 

Postal Address 

Site Address 

PIN 

llii u-nic ipa lity 

S ch ool Dis1rict 

Owner lnfonnation 

: CITY OF PONTIAC 

: 8 N SAGINAW ST PONTIAC Ml 48342-2110 

Location Information 

: 68 OAK LAND AVE PONTIAC Ml 48342-2043 

: 14-29-258-'004 

: C ity o f Pontiac 

Neighborhood Code 

: 210 PONTIAC CITY SCHOOLS 

:CME 

. . 
Pro Descri tion 

T3N R1 OE SEC 29 ASS ESSOR'S PLAT NO 29 LOT 39 

No Sales Since 1994 

Tax lnfonnation 

T .ax.lb le V.al ue State Equ a.Ii zed V alue 

C urren.t Assessed V a.lue Capped V.>Jue 

Effecti1Je Date For Taxes : 12/0112018 Principa.l Residenee : NIA 

Exemption Type 

Summer Princ ipal :0% W i-nter Principal Re.sidence :0% 

Residence Exemption Exemption Percent 

Percent 

2017 Tu es 2018 Taxes 

Summer : $0.00 Summer : $0.00 

Winter : $0.,00 Wrn ter : $0.00 

Viii vrn . . 
Lot lnfonnation 

IDescripl!ion : L EVEL Area 0.177 ACRES 



Click on map to start, double click to finish . 
Click on "Measurement" title above to exit measurements . 

•• 2J I Feet • 

Measurement Result 







~~@~@%~ 
155.05 





DTE Electric Company Underground Easement (Rigbt of Way) No.. 48516064-48516093 

OJ1 , 2019, for the consideration of system betterment, Grantor grants to Grantee a permanent, non-exclusive 
underground easement ("Right of Way") in, on, and across a part of Grantor's Land called the "Right of Way Area". 

"Grantor" is: PONTIAC DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, WHOSE ADDRESS IS 8 N. SAGINAW ST, 
PONTIAC, :MI 48342 

"Grantee" is: DTE Electric Company, a Michigan corporation, One Energy Plaza Drive, Detroit, Michigan 48226 

"Grantor's Land" is in NE 1/4, SEC 29, T3N, RI OE, CITY OF PONTIAC, County of OAKLAND, and State of Michigan, 
and is described as follows: 

T3N, R10E, SEC 29 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 29 LOT 39 

Tax Identification Number(s): 14-29-258-004 
More commonly known as: 68 OAKLAND AVE, PONTIAC, Ml 4834.2 

The "Right of Way Area" is a fifteen (15') foot wide easement on part of Grantor's Land. The centerline of the Right of Way 
Area shall be established in the as-built location of the centerline of Grantee's :facilities, ;ind shall be installed on Grantor's Land in the 
approximate location descnbed as follows: · 

THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OR EASEMENT DRAWING IS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT "A" 
ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF. 

Tax Identificati.on Number(s): 14-29-258-004 
More commonly known as: 68 OAKLAND AVE, PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

1. Purpose: The purpose of this Right of Way :is to construct, reconstruct, modify, add to, repair, replace, inspect, operate and 
maintain underground utility line facilities, which may consist of poles, guys, anchors, wires, manholes, conduits, pipes, cables, 
tr.msfonners and accessories. 
2. Access; Grantee has the right of pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress to and from the Right of Way Area over and across 
Grantor's Land. 
3. Buildings or other Permanent Structures: No buildings or other permanent structures or improvements may be constructed or 
placed in the Right of Way Area without Grantee's prior, written consent. Grantor agrees, at its own expense, to remove any 
improvement that interferes with the safu and reliable operation, maintenance and repair of Grantee's facilities upon the written 
demand of Grantee. ff Grantor fuils to comply with such demand, Grantor agrees that Grantee may remove any such improvement 
and bill Granter for the cost thereo~ which cost Grantor shall pay within thirty (30) days after demand therefor. 
4. Excavation: Pursuant to 2013 Public Act 174, MISS DIG (1-800-482-7171 or 811 in some areas) must be called before any 
excavation in the Right of Way Area may proceed. 
5. Trees, Bushes, Branches, Roots, Structures and Fences: Grantee may trim, cut down, remove or otherwise control any trees, 
bushes, branches and roots growing or that could grow or fall in the Right of Way Area and remove any structures, improvements, 
fences, bmldings or landscaping in the Right of Way Area that Grantee believes could interfere with the safe and reliable construction,. 
operation, maintenance and repair of Grantee's facilities. No landscaping, trees, plant life, structures, improvements or fences may be 
planted, grown or installed within 8 feet of the front door, or within 2 feet of the other sides, of transfonners or switching cabinet 



enclosures, and G.ran.tee iiiiaff noi be responsible for any damage to, or removal of, landscaping, trees, plant life, structures, 
improvements and/or fences located in such areas. 
6. Restoration: If Grantee's agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, vehicles or equipment damage Grantor's Land while 
ootenng Grantor's Land for the purposes stated in this Right of Way, then Grantee will restore Grantor's Land as nearly as is 
-reasonably practicable to the condition in which it existed prior to such damage. Restoration with respect to paved surfaces sball 
consist of asphalt cold patching of the damaged portion of any asphalted sur:fuces when ilie weather conditions suggest such use and 
the cement patching of the damaged portion of any cemented surfuces. Grantee shall have no liability, however, for the restoration or 
cost of any improvements located within the Right of Way Area, including, but not limited to, parking islands, gutters, fences or 
landscaping such as trees, bushes, or flowers (but not a simple lawn which. if damaged, will be patched and re-seeded by Grantee) 
that are damaged by Grantee in the course of constructing, reconstructing, modifying, adding to, repairing, replacing, operating or 
maintaining its facilities as descnbed in paragraph 1 above. 
7, Successors: This Right of Way runs with the land and binds and benefits Grantor's and Grantee's successors and assigns. 
8. Exemptions: This Right of Way is exempt from transfer tax pursuant to MCL 207 .505(a) and MCL 207.526( a). 
9. Governing Law: This Right ofWay shall be governed by the laws of the S-tate ofMichigan. 

Grantor(s): Pontiac Downtown Development Authority 

By:---~---------Name: ______________ _ 
Title _______________ _ 

Acknowledged before me in ___________ County, Michigan, on _________ __, 2019, 
by ____________ ~Its: _________ for Pontiac Downtown Development Authority. 

Notary's Notary's 
Stamp _________________ ~Signature ________________ _ 

Acting in County, Michigan 
Drafted by and when recorded, return to: Cassandra Dansby, D'JEE!ectric Company, NW Planning & Design, 37849 Interchange Dr., 
Farmington Hills, :MI 48335 

2 



-·-- ···---------

[xhibitA 

NOTES: 

BEARING STRUClVRt IS 13ASED ON ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 29, UBER 1, PAGE 29, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS. 

TI-IE PROPERTY LINE INDICATED HEREON ARE FOR REFERENCE ONLY. 
NO BOUNDARY SURVEY WORK HAS BEEN PERFORMED ON mrs SITI:: AT THIS DATE. 

LOT 37 

LOT 3$ 

TAX PARCEL 
14-29-258-004 
68 0A><LAN0 AVEtM: 

-"o.q,. 

ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 
UBER 1, PAGE 29 

LOT 39 

DTE ELECTRIC 
EQUIPMENT EASEMENT 

AREA = 375.00 SQ. FT. 

LOT 40 

LOT 42 

E'LY. LINE OF OAKLAND AVE. 

OAKLAND AVENUE 
REVISION 

OINT OF BEGINNING 
1---------'"'""''"""""""',-,---------.,.,,.,,....,,,,..,..,.,.., ELEClRIC EQUIPMENT EASEMENT 

A 

DTE Energy 

, 

DTE Efectrir, Campany 

C6'Nt,t4L DcS/011 
SURVEY/11/3 SEJlV/CeS 
5,s sm~cr /JIJIW,Wo 

BY 

8 

MAP AND DESCRIP110N 
OF DTE ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT EASEMENT ON LOT 39 

ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 2!:11 Cl1Y OF PONTIAC, 
OAKLAND COUNTT, MICHIGAN 

68 OAKLAND AVENUE 
sc-_..t.E OAAWN BY 

~11m1I 1 INCH~ __2Q__FW" C, ZBOCH A. CASTILLO 6/20/2019 

SHEET 1 OF 2 
JOB NUUBER 

201906116 
•RAVIJNG NO. 

SE P0N-022 



PARCEL DESCRlPTION (TAX ID: 14•29-251/.004) 

Lot 39, ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 29, ofPmts of the N,E. and S.E. 1/4of Section 29, Town 3 North, 
Range 10 East, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, ns recorded in Liber 1 of Assessors Plats, 
Page 29, Oakland Coun!y Records. 

DTE ELJfCTRIC EQTilPMENT EASEMENT 

An Blectrio Equipment Easement 011 part of Lot 39, ASSESSOR'S Pl'.A T NO, 29, of Parts of the N.E. 
and S.E. 1/4 of Section 29, Tow.n 3 North, Range 10 Eas~ City of Pontiac, Oa.klarid County, Michigan. as 
recorded in Liber 1 of Assessors Plats, Page 29, Oakll!lld County Records, being described as: 
Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Lot 39, thence North 46°29140" West, 12.15 fuet along the 
Easterly line of Oakland Aven11c to tlm POINT OF BEG!NNING; thence continuing along said Easterly 
line of Oakla11d A1•enue North 46°29'40" West, Z5.00 feet; thence North 43P30'20" Ea!!l:, 15.00 feet; 
thanco South 46°29'40' East, 25.00 feet; 1hence South 43"30'20" West, 15.00 feet to the Poilltof 
Bo ginning. Containing 375, 00 square feet of land, mote or less, 

DTE Energy 
DTE Electric Company 

cotm.U O!S/GN 
SIJRVEYJNG SERVJCES 
5-fS.5.$'11Cf/iUl(..J);f{(J 

8 l8Y c.J.z. 1°~i,1,019 jAPP. A.c. 
I MOV.0 EASEMENT ANO CHANCtD SIZE 

MAP AND DESCRIP110N 
OF DTE ELEC1RIC EQUIPMENT EASEMENT ON LOT 39 

ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. ~ 1 CITY OF PONTIAC, 
OAKLAND COUN IT, MlCHIGAN 

68 OAKLAND AVENUE 
sr:>u:. OfWiN fif IS\JffVEY ENOJN:Em 

E4i,,,,,,~ I INCH~ N.A. FEET C. ZBOCH A. CASTILLO I MlE Qf ®\IIN!i" 

6/20/2019 

SHEET 2 OF 2 
Joa NUJJllER 

201906116 
Oft.l,,VIJNG NO, 

SE PON 022 





TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council 
Members 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman thru the Office of Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

August 29, 2019 

Resolation to authorize the Mayor to negotiate the terms of a purchase 
agreement for the acquisition of the property located on 235 Wesson 
Street and conduct due diligence for the benefit of the City, at a cost not 
to exceed $45,000. 

The following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

Whereas, on or about July 22, 2019 the City of Pontiac was presented with a Real 
Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") by PL TC I Realty 
Investment, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, for the sale by seller and the 
purchase by the City of multiple parcels of land consisting of: (i) an 8 acre parcel located at 
235 Wessen Street upon which the Wessen Tennis Club currently operates ("Parcel A"); (ii) 
2 vacant lots at the corner of Wessen and Branch Streets ("Parcel B"); and (iii) 2 vacant lots 
located at the corner or Houston and Branch Streets ("Parcels C and D") for a recited sale 
price of $2,550,000. 

Whereas, the City Council's Real Estate Subcommittee referred the Purchase 
Agreement to the Mayor's Office for further review. 

Whereas, council for the Seller has provided the City Attorney with copies of certain 
items of due diligence which will not be comprehensively reviewed or vetted without the 
approval of Council. 

Whereas, the Mayor's Office cannot, without the approval of Council: (i) determine 
if the purchase price proposed by the seller is appropriate; (ii) negotiate terms and 
conditions to the Purchase Agreement so that it may be resubmitted to Council for its 
consideration and execution if so approved; and (iii) undertake all necessary due diligence 
inspections and investigations as any purchaser of commercial property would undertake 
to determine the suitability of the property for the City's contemplated use, which 
investigations include, without limitation: title and survey review, environmental review and 
appraisal. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED: the Mayor is authorized to negotiate the 
terms of a purchase agreement for the acquisition of the above-described property for 
Council's review and consideration and to conduct or obtain, for the benefit of the City, the 
following items of due diligence: 

• A physical inspection of all improvements located upon the property; 



• Receipt and review of a title insurance commitment ( obtained at the Seller's cost 
and expense) to ascertain whether the seller has good and marketable title to 
the property; 

• Obtain: (i) a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment and Report; (ii) Phase II 
Environmental Site Assessment and Report; and because the property has been 
environmentally impacted; (iii) a Baseline Environmental Site Assessment which 
would be submitted to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality of the 
City proceeded with the purchase of the property; 

• A survey of the property being acquired; and 

• An appraisal of the property to determine whether the proposed purchase price 
tendered by the seller is appropriate. 

With all related legal fees (associated with the negotiation of the purchase agreement and 
review of all items of due diligence) and due diligence costs not to exceed $45,000.00 and 
to be completed within 60 days of the date of this Resolution. 

JBD 



1 
UTI. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Thru: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Hughey Newsome, Interim Finance Director 

Office of Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais-DiSessa 

9/5/2019 

Resolution to Approve Budget Amendment to transfer amount necessary 

to fund improvements to Pontiac City Parks - move money from City 

Council budget to Parks 

The FY 2010-2020 budget as adopted by City Council on June 28, 2019, includes an 
approved General Fund allocation of $100,000 for Neighborhood Projects within the Parks 
Grounds Maintenance department. As such, effective July 1, 2019, these funds were set 
available to perform specific projects to improve the city's parks. 

The Director of the Department of Public Works (DPW) has determined that, due to lack of 
security in the city parks, the amount of money needed to provide certain amenities (e.g. 
barbecue pits, picnic tables, restrooms) is well above the $100,000 allocation. 

Recently, the Mayor's· Office was made aware that certain members of the City Council 
were concerned with the lack of equipment at city parks in general. Of course, it would not 
be prudent to purchase and install equipment that is not secure, given that there is risk of 
theft and vandalism. 

Per direction of the Mayor, the Finance Department has identified certain City Council 
departmental appropriations that would help fund equipment installation and security. In an 
effort to match what has already been appropriated, it is being proposed with this budget 
amendment that the City Council provide an additional $100,000 to the already appropriated 
$100,000. The source of these funds would be the following appropriations: 

101-101-808.101 District Projects $98,000 
101-101-804.000 Leaal Services ~ 2,000 

Total s100,ooo 



Memo - Budget Amendments 
November 28, 2018 
Page 2 of 2. 

As such, with an effective date of proposed effective date of September 10, 2019, the 
following resolution is recommended: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2019-2020 budget on June 29, 2019; 
and 

Whereas, the adopted FY 2019-2020 General Fund budget includes an approved Parks 
Ground Maintenance Neighborhoods Projects appropriation of $100,000 for employee 
wage increases; and 

Whereas, the adopted FY 2019-2020 General Fund budget also includes an approved 
appropriation for City Council District Projects of $98,000; and 

Whereas, the adopted FY 2019-2020 General Fund budget also includes an approved 
appropriation for City Council Legal Services of greater than $2,000 (actually $30,000); and 

Whereas, the account number associated with Parks Ground Maintenance Neighborhoods 
Projects is 101-818-808.000, the account number associated with City Council District 
Projects is 101-101-808.101 and the account number associated with City Council Legal 
Services is 101-101-804.000; and 

Whereas, the Mayor is proposing to the City Council to decrease the appropriation for 101-
101-808.101 by $98,000 and to decrease the appropriation for 101-101-804.000 by $2,000 
and to increase the appropriation for 101-818-808.000 by $100,000 for the current fiscal 
year of 2019-2020. 

Now therefore, be it resolved that the City Council of the City of Pontiac approves the 
aforementioned budget amendment for the fiscal year 2018-2019 as requested by the 
Mayor. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable Council President and City Council Members 
Jane Bais DiSessa, Office of the Deputy Mayor FROM: 

Cc: Mayor Deirdre Waterman, Hughey Newsome, Interim Finance Director, and 
John Balint, DPW Director 

DATE: 9/5/2019 

RE: Budget Amendment for Pontiac City Parks. 

Pursuant to the following facts, that: 

• a total of 32 parks are located throughout the City of Pontiac; 
• there are no Staff dedicated full-time for park maintenance; and 
• no budgetary funds were allocated in the FY 2019/20 Adopted Budget for park 

capital improvements. 

As you all know, the City's park maintenance has been done through worked provided by 
numerous Volunteer groups, and through the Mayor's Neighborhood Empowerment 
Program (NEP). The following are a few examples of park improvements made through 
NEP: 

• Friends of Pantie Park/ Argyle Park: Installation of a playscape, bench and table at 
a total cost of $16,072.00; 

• Friends of Pontiac Park/ Beaudette Park: Upgrade the park by adding three tire 
swing sets and a climbing structure at a total cost of $32,111.00; 

• Project Pontiac/Mattie McKinney Hatchett Park: Upgrade the Park by removal of 
the current play structures and installation of a new play structure at a total cost of 
$28.055.00; 

• We Care Neighborhood Association/Oakland Park: Restoration of the basketball 
court at a total cost of $23,000; and 

• We Care Neighborhood Association/Charlie Harrison Park: Restoration of the 
basketball court at a total cost of $13,990.00. 

The Mayor respectfully challenges the City Council to match her NEP efforts by approving 
the recommended $100,000.00 budget amendment. If approved, these funds may be used 
for both park maintenance and the acquisition of needed park equipment. Thank you for 
your consideration. Let me know if any questions arise. 

JBD 



1 
U I TIO 

OMTHE 

AYOR 



Memorandum 
To: Pontiac City Council 

From: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

Date: September 12, 2019 

Re: Mayor's Report 

Check Registry: 

Check registers are processed and recorded online according to the procedure determined by the 
Finance Department. 

The Interim Finance Director has finalized training of the new procedures related to Purchase Orders. 

New Hires: 

No new hires to report for the past month but the H/R manager has submitted her resignation in the in 

action to the video posted which Pro-Tern Randy Carters publicly defamed the female women of this 

administration in voguer terms. 

Credit Card: 

Credit card statement is verified monthly and are given directly to Council at their request. 



1 
LUTI 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Thru: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Streets: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Plante Moran - Controller's Office 

Office of Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais-DiSessa 

9/19/2019 

Resolution to Approve Budget Amendments for Major Streets projects, 

Local Streets projects, and Code Enforcement 

The FY 2019-2020 budget as adopted by City Council on June 25, 2019, includes certain 
appropriations for 2019 Major Street and Local Street repair projects. The proposed 
appropriations for those projects assumed that a certain amount of work would be 
completed in FY 19. When the work assumed to be completed in FY 19 had not started 
or was still in progress by end of fiscal year, a certain amount of those funds were unused; 
those funds went to fund balance at the end of the fiscal year. 

The Director of the Department of Public Works (DPW) has expressed the need to have 
those unused funds pulled out of fund balance so that these projects can be fully funded 
for FY 20. 

While it is ideal to wait until the full accounting and auditing for the costs incurred during 
the fiscal year are both complete to fully ascertain what funds would be available out of 
fund balance, these projects are ongoing and need funding sooner than the November / 
December timeframe in which the audit would be completed. Due to this, the Finance 
Department has worked with the DPW to estimate what these amounts would be, based 
on invoices outstanding that are awaiting payment. 

The below table illustrates amounts of money that need to be placed in the FY 20 
appropriation for Major Streets from fund balance, based on this calculation: 

Projected Remaining 

Budget as of 6/30/19 Additional Funds Total FY19/20 

FYlS/19 Total Spent to be put into Fund FY19/20 Needed in Budget after 

Project Account# Budget in FYlS/19 Balance Budget FY19/20 Amendment 

Hill Street 202-463-974.066 $ 681,005 $ 616,048 $ 64,957 $_ - $ 75,000 $ · 75,000 

Joslyn 202-463-974.070 $2,115,953 $1,779,301 $ 336,652 $ - $ 336,652 $ 336,652 
University Drive 202-463-974.071 $ 296,266 $ 111,407 $ 184,859 $30,000 $ 184,859 $ 214,859 

Perry Street 202-463-987 .000 $ 15,301 $ - $ 15,301 $30,000 $ 15,301 $ 45,301 
Mill Street 202-463-988.000 $ 280,241 $ 124,846 $ · 155,395 $30,000 $ 155,395 $ 185,395 



Memo - Budget Amendments 
September 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 6. 

Additionally, the below table illustrates amounts of money that need to be placed in the FY 
20 appropriation for Local Streets from fund balance, based on this calculation: 

Projected Remaining 

Budget as of 6/30/19 Additional Funds Total FY19/20 

FY18/19 Total Spent to be put into Fund FY19/20 Needed in Budget after 

Project Account# Budget in FYlS/19 Balance Budget FY19/20 Amendment 

Kettering 203-463-974.069 $ 970,160 $ 636,975 $ 333,185 $ - $ 333,185 $ 333,185 

Irwin 203-463-986.000 $ 610,000 $ - $ 610,000 $ - $ 610,000 $ 610,000 

Ferry 203-463-990.000 $ 374,360 $ - $ 374,360 $ - $ 374,360 $ 374,360 

Mowing: 

The FY 2019-2020 budget as adopted by City Council on June 25, 2019, includes an 
approved General Fund allocation of $30,000 for Wade Trim in account 101-690-818.060 
within the Economic Development (Redevelopment and Housing) department. Some time 
ago, mowing services were partially paid from that account as well as Code 
Enforcement's allocation. Code Enforcement's mowing allocation for FY 2019-2020 
budget was $5,000 found in account 101-733-818.006. 

Since then, the Code Enforcement department has already utilized its allocation for 
mowing and needs to access those funds to complete mowing activities for the calendar 
year. Likewise, no Community Development mowing has occurred and is not expected 
for this fiscal year. 

Therefore, the Code Enforcement department, through Finance needs the following 
budget amendment to move the $30,000 to their department, as follows: 

Account# Description Amount 

101-733-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services $ 30,000 

101-690-818.060 Prof. Serv-Wade Trim $ {30,000) 

The following resolution is recommended: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2019-2020 budget on June 25, 2019; 
and 

Whereas, certain funds from the FY 2018-2019 Major Streets Fund and Local Streets 
Fund will remain unused since projects set to be completed by FY 2018-2019 fiscal year 
did not conclude before June 30, 2019; and 

Whereas, the unused funds would transfer to the Major Streets Fund fund balance and 
the Local Streets Fund fund balance; and 



Memo - Budget Amendments 
September 19, 2019 
Page 3 of 6. 

Whereas, the Finance and Public Works is proposing to the City Council to increase the 
appropriations for the current year 2019-2020 for the funds and amounts described below 
as necessary to complete the projects that the City Council had fully funded and approved 
in the last fiscal year but were not timely expended; and 

• Major Street Fund: $767,207 
o Hill Street- $75,000 
o Joslyn - $336,652 
o University Drive - $184,859 
o Perry Street- $15,301 
o Mill Street- $155,395 

• Local Street Fund: $1,317,545 
o Kettering - $333, 185 
o Irwin - $610,000 
o Ferry- $374,360 

Whereas, the increased appropriations will not cause the fund balance in any of the funds 
to go below the policy mandated thresholds; and 

Whereas, the General Fund fund has an appropriation of $30, OOiJ for mowing that is in 
account 101-690-818.060 that needs to be utilized by Code Enforcement out of account 
number 101-733-818.006; and 

Now therefore be it resolved that the Pontiac City Council approves the following budget 
amendments for the fiscal year FY 2019-2020 as requested by the Executive Office: 

Additional Funds 

From Move To Account Needed in FY19/20 

Fund 202 - Major Street Fund Balance 202-463-974.066 - Hill Street $ 75,000 

Fund 202 - Major Street Fund Balance 202-463-974.070 - Joslyn $ 336,652 

Fund 202 - Major Street Fund Balance 202-463-974.071 - University Drive $ 184,859 

Fund 202 - Major Street Fund Balance 202-463-987 .000 - Perry Street $ 15,301 

Fund 202 - Major Street Fund Balance 202-463-988.000 - Mill Street $ 155,395 

Fund 203 - Local Street Fund Balance 203-463-974.069 - Kettering $ 333,185 

Fund 203 - Local Street Fund Balance 203-463-986.000 - Irwin $ 610,000 

Fund 203 - Local Street Fund Balance 203-463-990.000 - Ferry $ 374,360 

101-690-818.060 - Prof. Serv-Wade Trim 101-733-818.006 - Contractual Mowing Serv. $ 30,000 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Thru: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Hughey Newsome, Interim Finance Director 

Office of Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais-DiSessa 

9/12/2019 

Resolution to Restore the Finance Director's Salary via Amendment to 

Budget Account that pays Finance Department Salaries. 

The FY 2010-2020 budget as adopted by City Council on June 28, 2019, includes an 
approved General Fund allocation of $298,771 for the salaries of personnel working within 
the Finance Department. The appropriation represents an allocation of $50,000 set aside 
to pay the Finance Director's salary, as directed by the City Council during the budget 
adoption process. As such, effective July 1, 2019, the amount available to pay the Finance 
Director for his/ her during FY 2019-2020 was lowered to $50,000. 

As the outgoing Interim Finance Director, I am very concerned that such a low amount 
would be inadequate to attract and recruit a qualified replacement Finance Director. 
Consider that the city cannot advertise for wages higher than what is available in the budget; 
therefore, there is no way the city can find a permanent Finance Director that is willing to 
work for more than $50,000. 

Indeed, as the city continues to progress from Emergency Financial Management through 
recovery and into prosperity, it is paramount that the city has a solid Finance Director to 
focus on the city's finances. 

With that, the Finance Department is requesting that the following budget amendment be 
performed. This amendment would take money out of General Fund fund balance and 
restore the line item 101-206-702.000 to $388,771. This would allow us to recruit a solid 
person for the role. 



Memo - Budget Amendments 
November 28, 2018 
Page 2 of 2. 

As such, with an effective date of proposed effective date of September 10, 2019, the 
following resolution is recommended: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2019-2020 budget on June 29, 2019; 
and 

Whereas, the adopted FY 2019-2020 General Fund budget includes an appropriation for 
salaries for personnel in the Finance Department using account number 101-206-702.000; 
and 

Whereas, the appropriation for account number 101-206-702.000 was $298,771, which 
represented a cut in the salary for the Finance Director to $50,000 per year; and 

Whereas, the requested appropriation in the Mayor's Recommended budget for account 
number 101-206-702.000 was $388,771; and, 

Whereas, the General Fund fund balance would have adequate funding available since it 
was originally available before the reduction by the duly elected City Council; 

Now therefore, be it resolved that the City Council of the City of Pontiac approves the budget 
amendment for the fiscal year 2019-2020 to move $90,000 from General Fund fund balance 
to account number 101-206-702.000 as requested by the Mayor. 





TO: 

FROM: 

Cc: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council 
Members 

Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman, Hughey Newsome, Interim Finance Director, and 
Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk. 

August29,2019 

Resolution to Approve Amendment 1 to the 2016 Oakland County 
Brownfield Consortium Agreement between Oakland County and the 
City of pontiac. 

Background: 

In accordance with the EPA 2016 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant, the Oakland 
County Brownfield Consortium was awarded six hundred thousand dollars ($600,000.00) 
for developing inventories of brownfields, prioritizing sites, conducting community 
involvement activities, and conducting site assessments and clean-up planning related to 
brownfield sites. -

Under the terms of the 2016 Consortium Agreement, the City of Pontiac was allocated 
sixty thousand dollars ($60,000.00) to be used to assess brownfield sites in its geographic 
area. The Grant period and the ability to spend those allocated funds is currently set to 
expire on September 1, 2019. To-date, the City of Pontiac has exceeded their allocation 
by $22,035. 

Presently, various Municipalities have unspent allocated funds and do not intend to spend 
their remaining allocated Grant funds before the expiration period. Whereas, other 
members have spent their allocated Grant funds and need additional funds to pay for 
expenses allowed under the Grant. Please know that the County has agreed to reallocate 
unspent Grant funds to other members of the Consortium at the County's sole discretion, 
and have asked the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to extend the Grant for an 
additional 180 days. 

Council Action Requested: 

As such, the County is requesting that alL Municipal Consortium members consider 
approving an amendment to the 2016 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium Agreement 
as attached. Due to the tight deadline, it is respectfully requested that the City Council 
consider this amendment at the September 3, 2019 Formal City Council meeting. 

The following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

WHEREAS the Oakland County Board of Commissioners approved the USEPA 
Brownfield Assessment Grant (the "Grant") as well as the lnterloca/ Agreements of each 
member of the Oakland County Brownfield Consortium (the "Consortium''); and 



Resolution to Approve Amendment 1 to the 2016 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium 
Agreement between the City of Pontiac and Oakland County 
August 29, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 . 

. Action Requested Continued: 

WHEREAS each partner consortium member receives $60,000 to spend in their 
communities; and 

WHEREAS the Grant is due to expire on September 1, 2019; and 

WHEREAS Oakland County has requested a Grant extension from the USEPA in order to 
spend the remaining Grant funds; and 

WHEREAS Oakland County Corporation Counsel has drafted and reviewed an 
amendment to the lnterlocal Agreements ("Amendment 1 '? for the reallocation of funds 
between Oakland County and the Consortium members; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves the 
attached Amendment 1 and authorizes the Mayor to execute this Amendment on behalf of 
the City of Pontiac and hereby accepts and binds the City of Pontiac to the terms and 
conditions of Amendment 1. 

Mr. Brad Hansen, Senior Business Development Representative for Oakland County's 
Economic Development & Community Affairs will be attending this meeting to address any 
questions from the City Council. 

Thank you for your consideration to this request. 

Attachment 

JBD 



AMENDMENT 1 TO THE 
2016 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
OAKLAND COUNTY 

AND 
CITY OF PONTIAC 

The County of Oakland (the "County") and the City of Pontiac, ( collectively referred to as the "Parties" 
and individually a "Party"), agree and acknowledge that that the purpose of this Amendment 1 is to modify 
as provided herein and to otherwise continue the present contractual relationship between the Parties as 
described in their current 2016 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium Agreement (the "2016 
Consortium Agreement"). 

Pursuant to the EPA 2016 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant (the "Grant"), the Oakland County 
Brownfield Consortium (the "Consortium") was awarded six hundred thousand dollars ($600,000.00) for 
developing inventories of brownfields, prioritizing sites, conducting community involvement activities, 
and conducting site assessments and clean-up planning related to brownfield sites. Under the terms of the 
2016 Consortium Agreement, Municipality was allocated sixty thousand dollars ($60,000.00) to be used 
to assess brownfield sites in its geographic area. The Grant period and the ability to spend those allocated 
funds is currently set to expire on September 1, 2019. 

Municipality has unspent allocated Grant funds and does not intend to spend its remaining allocated Grant 
funds within its geographic area before the expiration period. Other members of the Consortium have 
spent their allocated Grant funds and need additional funds to pay for expenditures allowed under the 
Grant. The County is the fiscal agent/fiduciary of the Consortium for receipt and disbursement of the 
Grant funds. Municipality wishes, and the County agrees, to allow the County to reallocate Municipality's 
unspent allocated Grant funds to other members of the Consortium at the County's sole discretion. The 
County intends to ask the Environmental Protection Agency to extend the current Grant period to allow 
the Consortium to spend the remaining Grant funds. 

The County and Municipality hereby amend the 2016 Consortium Agreement as follows: 

Amendment 1 

1. Except as provided in this Amendment 1, any and all defined words or phrases in the 2016 Consortium 
Agreement will apply equally to and throughout this Amendment 1. 

2. All other provisions in the 2016 Consortium Agreement not otherwise affected by this Amendment 1 
remain in full force and effect. 

3. The following provision (Section 5.3) is added to the 2016 Consortium Agreement: 

"5.3 Notwithstanding Section 5.2 or anything else herein to the contrary, the County 
may reallocate, at its sole discretion, the unused grant funds allocated to 
Municipality to any other member( s) of the Consortium. Furthermore, Municipality 
may receive grant funds in excess of the amount allocated in Section 5 .2, at the sole 
discretion of County, if grant funds are reallocated to Municipality from other 
members of the Consortium. 

Page 1 



4. Section 6.2 of the 2016 Consortium Agreement is deleted and replaced with the following: 

"6.2 Unless terminated pursuant to Section 8 of this Agreement, this Agreement shall 
end ninety (90) days after the date the Grant period ends (including any extensions 
to the original Grant period)." 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual assurances, promises, and acknowledgments set 
forth in this Amendment 1 and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned hereby execute this Amendment 1 on behalf of the Parties, 
and by doing so legally obligate and bind the Parties to the terms and conditions of this Amendment 1. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Deirdre Waterman, Mayor of City of Pontiac, hereby acknowledges 
that she has been authorized by a resolution of the Municipality's governing body to execute this 
Amendment 1 on behalf of the Municipality and hereby accepts and binds the Municipality to the terms 
and conditions of this Amendment 1. · 

EXECUTED: 

WITNESSED: 

Deirdre Waterman 
Mayor 

Garland Doyle 
Interim City Clerk 

DATE: -------

DATE: -------

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, David T. Woodward, Chairperson, Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners hereby acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the Oakland County 
Board of Commissioners, to execute this Amendment 1 on behalf of Oakland County, and hereby accepts 
and binds Oakland County to the terms and conditions of this Amendment 1. 

EXECUTED: 

WITNESSED: 

------------
, Chairperson 

Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

------------
County of Oakland 

Page2 

DATE: -------

DATE: -------



17 
0 U I TIO 

FROM THE 

MAYOR 



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
.·September 18, 2019 

CONTACT: 
Amazon 
amazon-pr@amazon.com 

City of Pontiac 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
248-758-3326 
248-758-,3181 

DR. DEIRDRE WATERMAN 

MAYOR 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

· Pontiac Mayor Deirdre Waterman Announces Development of Former Silverdome 
Site: Plans set in motion for Distribution Center upon approval of Amazon Deal 

PONTIAC- The storied history of the Pontiac Silverdome is soon expected to boast a new chapter. 
The 127-acre site that is former home of the Detroit Lions and Detroit Pistons may soon land 
another big name tenant - Amazon. 

Plans are in the works to redevelop the site into a regional distribution center for the retail titan. 
If developed, the $250 Million planned project is expected to create over 1,500 full time jobs for 
the area and be the first site nationally for Amazon to have both a fulfillment center and 
delivery station. 

First steps in the process were completed Wednesday night as the Pontiac Planning Commission 
considered granting a special exemption permit for the site to be used as a warehouse, 
distribution and fulfillment campus. 

The application was made by Atlanta-based Seefried Industrial Properties. Representatives from 
both Seefried and Amazon were present at the meeting to discuss details of the project. Seefried 
is under contract to purchase the Silverdome site for the purpose of building two facilities that 
would be leased by Amazon. Throughout the country, Seefried has b~ilt multiple distribution 
centers for Amazon. 

Pontiac Mayor Deirdre Waterman called the potential development and pairing with Amazon a 
"great match." 

47450 Woodward Avenue • Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Direct: (248) 758-3181 • Appointments: (248) 758-3326 • Fax: (248) 758-3292 

E-mail: DWaterman@pontiac.mi.us • www.pontiac.mi.us 



While a final decision on closing on the purchase of the Silverdome site is still months away, 
details of the plan reveal immediate construction with the proposed delivery station operational by 
3rd quarter 2020 and the :fulfillment center operational by 3rd quarter 2021. 

Wages for employees would start at $15 an hour for both full and part-time associates. Amazon's 
comprehensive benefits start upon hire for all employees including healthcare, vision and dental, 
401k, and paid leave. 

"The former Silverdome site is an ideal location and Pontiac is poised with a ready workforce" 
said Mayor Watennan. "Landing Amazon will bolster Pontiac's continued economic success and 
further our pipeline of pairing industry with talent." 

Situated along the junction of southeast Michigan's busiest highways - 175 and M59- the site is 
one of Oal<land County's most prime big sites for redevelopment including the Palace of Auburn 
Hills slated for demolition and the Summit Place Mall property that was just tom down~ but none 
with the nostalgia of over 3 decades of memories left from the Silverdome site. 

The Silverdome was opened in 1975 and closed permanently in 2013, 

The 80,000 seat stadium played host to Super Bowl XVI, the 1979 NBA AU-Star Grune, Wrestlemania lII, 
FIFA World Cup 1994, mega rock concerts and visits from the likes of U.S. presidents, musical royalty 
such as the Beatles, Michael Jackson and even His Holiness Pope John Paul II. 

After two paiiial implosions, the Silverdome was demolished in 2017 and clearedforredevelopment. 

### 



Project Overview 

Seefried Industrial Properties, Inc. is under contract to purchase the Silverdome site and is in the midst 
of conducting its due diligence, which includes feasibility studies and work to secure the necessary 
municipal approvals for the development of the planned facility. A final decision on closing on the 
purchase of the site is still several months away. If the purchase closes, Amazon will be the tenant and 
will be operating two facilities under a long-term lease, as described below. 

Project Metrics 

" This facility will create over 1,500 full-time jobs. 
" The project will include more than $250M in investment. 
.. Amazon associates make an industry leading minimum wage of $15/hour for both full and p,3rt 

time associates. 
• More than 100 associates in managerial roles will make $60K+. 
• Amazon's comprehensive benefits start Day 1, including; healthcare, vision and dental, 401k~ 

paid leave, and others. 

Project Timeline 

• Lease signing EOY 2019. No final decision has been made. 
• Construction would immediately start post lease signing. 
• Delivery station operational by 3rd quarter 2020. 
• Fulfillment center operation by 3rd quarter 2'021. 

Project Specifics 

• This is the 1st site for Amazon to have both a Fulfillment Center and Delivery Station 
• 1uilding Heights - Fulfillment Center (94'-5"). and Delivery Station (57'-2") .. 
• Grading along Featherstone Rd - provide a 3' high earthen berm 
• Building Materials- Both buildings will consist of insulated precast concrete wall panel with 

reveals and texture coating, micro ribbed insulated metal ~all panel, horizontal ribbed insulated 
metal panel, and vision/tempered/spandrel glass. 

• Site Lighting - LED lighting on 25' high poles 
• Sound - Provide a Precast concrete sound wall at NW corner of the site 
• Traffic-studied 15 intersections with MOOT, Oakland County Road Commission, and City of 

Pontiac concurrence 

Career Choice 

• Amazon has created Career Choice, a re-training and upskilling program designed to help our 
hourly employees obtain vocational certificates and two-year degrees at accredited schools that 
wiH lead to employment in in-demand job fields, whether at Amazon or in another industry. 

1992855 

o Through Career Choice, Amazon prepays or reimburses up to 95% of tuition, associated 
fees, and required books up to a yearly maximum per rolling 12-month period over four 
consecutive years. 



o To date, more than 25,000 employees have participated in the Career Choice Program, 
and Amazon is committed to doubling participation by 2020. 

o We use resources like the Bureau of Labor and Statistics to ensure that we are only 
funding educational and training programs that lead to high demand occupations. 

o Video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DLHDAr8d9m4 

Upskilling 2025 programs (additional employee training programs) 

.. Launching Machine Learning LJ,niversity (MW), an initiative that helps Amazonians with a 
background in technology and coding gain skills in Machine Learning. As machine learning plays 
an increasingly important role in customer innovation, MLU helps employees learn core skills to 
propel their career growth-:- skills that are often learned only in higher education. Divided into 
six-week modules, the program requires only half to one full day of participation a week. MLU is 
taught by more than 400 Amazon Machine Learning scientists who are passionate about 
furthering skills in the field. Originally launched as a small cohort, the program is on course to 
train thousands of employees. 

" Launching Amazon Technical Academy, a training and job placement program that equips non
technical Amazon employees with the essential skills to transition into, and thrive in, software 
engineering careers. Combining instructor-led, project-based learning with real-world 
application, graduates of the program master the most widely used software engineering 
practices and tools required to thrive in a career at Amazon. This tuition-free program was 
created by Amazon software engineers for Amazon employees who want to move into the field. 

• Launching Associate2Tech, a program that provides fulfillment center associates the 
opportunity to move into technical roles, regardless of their previous IT experience, within 
Amazon's vast operations network. This fully-paid for 90-day program is designed to place 
associates in on-the-job training for IT support technician roles and pays for their A+ 
Certification test, a widely recognized certification. No existing degree is needed, and 
participants have paid study time during their work week. 

• Growing Career Choice, Amazon's pre-paid tuition program for fulfillment center associates 
looking to move into high-demand occupations. Amazon will pay up to 95% of tuition and fees 
towards a certificate or diploma in qualified fields of study, leading to enhanced employment 
opportunities in in-demand jobs. Since launching Career Choice in 2012, over 25,000 
Amazonians have received training for high-demand occupations including aircraft mechanics, 
computer-aided design, machine tool technologies, medical lab technologies, and nursing. The 
company is investing in expanding the program by building additional classrooms in its 
fulfillment centers globally, and expects to have over 60 on-site classrooms by the end of 2020. 

• Expanding Amazon Apprenticeship, a Department of Labor certified program that offers paid 
intensive classroom training and on-the-job apprenticeships with Amazon. Providing a 
combination of immersive learning and on-the-job training, the Amazon Apprenticeship 
program has already created paths to technical jobs for hundreds of candidates working to 
break into professions including cloud support associate, data technician and software 
development engineer. 

Amazon in Michigan 

2 



" $1+ billion invested in Michigan (2010-2018), including customer fulfillment and cloud 
infrastructure, and compensation to our employees 

" $940 million added into state GDP thanks to Amazon investments 
• 5,000+ full-time jobs created in Michigan - and we continue to hire 
• 121000+ jobs created on top of our direct hires in the state (based on Input-Output methodology 

developed by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis) 
" 52,500+ authors, small and medium sized businesses, and developers growing their 

businesses using Amazon products and services 
• 34,000+ charitable organizations that Amazon customers can support simply by shopping 

on AmazonSmile 

3 


	20190920184007403
	20190920184129007
	20190920184242978
	20190920184325250
	20190920184414472



